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The MW @1/’%21’912 ce.

Fuifilling customer needs,
based on knowledge,
respect and a customer
friendly environment,

is a unique quality of the
MW group of companies.
It's reflacted in the
merchandise, the
customer experience
and the demeanor of

the sales staff.

Our foundation Is
supported by a unique
culture of service and
success that is woven
into the fabric of an

exceptional company.

1
i

Leadership is wholly invested
in “doing what's right” for all
stakeholders — customers,
employees, and investors —
while continuously considering
new ways to create
sustainable value and growth.







From Fisk To Reward

GOOD FOR THE STAKEHOLDER: We continue to identify and
deliver on new growth initiatives and opportunities that are low
risk and high reward. Qur entry into the tuxedo rental market in
2000 is a good example — a diverse, yet complementary line
of business to tailored clothing. In fact, with our acquisition of
the 500+ store After Hours Formalwear business from
Federated Department Stores in April 2007, we are now the
largest provider of formal wear rentals in North America.

GOOD FOR THE CUSTOMER: When we identify opportnnitics
and implement initiatives fo enbance enstomer offerings and
service, the risk/reward ratio tilts sorongly toward significant
reward. This is becansc we believe customer vetention is a
combination of facters and offerings. First, we carn a customer’s
business loyalty by mecting the need for affordable apparel and
respectful service, and thew provide reasons to retwrn, At Men’s
Wearbonse and Moores, we fill o varicey of related nceds such as
next-day tailoving of purchases, free pressing for the life of a
garment, and offering the “Perfect Fir Rewards® loyalty card
that earns points toward disconnts and gift certificates. At K&G,
our customer can depend on finding an organized and decp
assortment of clothing at cxceprional values. Onr customers know
thar we focus on satisfving their needs,
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Suits

The moment a customer buys a suit from Men's Wearhouse,
Moores or K&G, the exceptional value and service offered helps
build an ongeing relationship. We believe they'll be more
inclined to return to an MW brand store to fulfill their lifelong
apparel needs.




The “DLalanced”
LBusiness Hodel

GOOD FOR THE STAKEHOLDER: MW recognizes and remains
faithiu! to the needs of our customers, They need apparel that
doesn't go out of style, But we must also appeal to a younger
demographic that is more tuned in to fashion trends. That is
why we merchandise a “balanced” assortment of both brand
name and private label inventory. By providing our customers
with quality apparel in both classic and contemporary styles,
we supply them with choices. And this means that, no matter
the age or menswear preference, our customer will come to
depend on us.

GOOD FOR THE CUSTOMER: They will always need n
knewledgeable salesperson to belp them put it all together. Need-
driven consumers return to what they can rely on and what
they are most comforeable with — exeeptional service, great value
and exactly what they necd and want every time they cross our
threshold. Outr menswear eustomers vecurn to the store where they
know their expectations witl abways be fulfilled and most
likely execeded.
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Tuxedos

When the occasion calls for formalwear, our customers know that
we will have exactly what they need — the right style, the right
fit, at the right time.







Good Ualize. Tllways

GOOD FOR THE STAKEHOLDER: In addition to our unique
service culture, MW was also founded on the concept of
"everyday low price” on quality merchandise. Value pricing has
allowed us to occupy an exceptional niche within our peer
group in that we compete with established menswear retailers,
department stores and discount and off-price retailers. But
good value is not just offering a better price on a garment or
service. Good value generates long-term consumer trust, which
in turn generates additional demand.

GOOD FOR THE CUSTOMER: Prices on apparel thar are lower
by 20% to 30% than those offered by other menswear retailers, and
lower by 30% to 50% than other big-box retailers, combined with
an exceprional level of personal service and convenience, result in
a “value® experience for ench and cvery customer. At MW, valuc
is a word that means much more than low prices for goed quality.
It also reflects how we feel about and carc for aur customcrs. We
value them.

SELLING GENERAL
& ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
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Tailored Clothing

Whether it is dressing for success or dressing to impress, cur diverse
offerings across the whole range of our retail brands provide customers

with real solutions, whether it's Men's Wearhouse, K&G, or Moores.







OPERATING INCOME
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GOOD FOR THE STAKEHOLDER: The emphasis that we place
on the customer experience dates back to the early years of
MW and the retail philosophy of our founder. Catering to the
needs of the custormner required an approach that combined 1.8
value and convenience with exceptional service. From the
exclusive training that store employees receive at "Suits
University” to top-down culture of collegiality and genuine
enthusiasm for the tailored clothing market, the MW service
culture drives the growth of the Company with the addition of

complementary businesses that enhance both the customers’ I
experience and the services offered to them. This culture of
service results in a truly exceptional workforce as well — one 76
that is schooled in our corporate values, sales and merchandise
information, confident in their abilities and the direction of our
Company, and mctivated to succeed at everything they are
asked to do.

GOOD FOR THE CUSTOMER: The custamcr who is trented with
respect and understanding, whether through dircet interaction or
by being offered a brond, organized and cleanly-presenred varicty
of quality merchandise at affordable prices and exceptional valne,
ar both, is more likely to become a loyal Men's Wearbonse, Moares
or K&G customer, driving repeat business and gencrarfonal sales.
Our sales people guide their customers through the cvulntion of
their tailored apparcl needs, and assist their sons with their first,
second and future formalwear occasions. Onr werchandising )
tenmns are tightly focused on the styles and garments our customers 02 03 04 05 06

arc secking, And the attentive service that is the cultural
hatlmark of MW is spread nacurally inta our other service-
bascd businesses of tuxedo rentals, rerail dry cleaning and
corporate npparel.

The Future

We start winning our customers’ loyalty when they come to us for their prom night attire, and later for their
first “interview” suit. By fulfilling their earliest tailored apparel needs, we continuously replenish and build
our customer base.







LETTER TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS

-

SURPASSING THE
EXPECTED

Most public companies define themselves by Lheir results. Geographic expansion,
earnings growth, improving margins, consistently returning value lo investors —
these are the common metrics used to chart progress. These are certainly valid and
desirable business drivers, but they're not the only measure of success, nor the sole
results of focused and motivated performance. At MW, we employ uncommon metrics
to measure the creation of stakeholder value. Our metrics qualify and quantify such
intangibles as levels of excellence in customer service, employee enthusiasm and
customer loyalty in addition to expansion statistics, consistently improving margins,
earnings growih and return on investment. Taking the measure of all of the above
poinis to more “Job Well Done” kudos for all cur employees for fiscal 2006.
Congratulations, team! '

The attributes that set us apart from our peers and drive our Company’s performance
are mufti-fold. One such differentiator is the culture of collegiality and humanity that
is locked in our genetic code. It runs in our veins across our entire enterprise, through
our varied storefront brands, and is maost evident in the all-for-one attitude found in
our people. Another is the emphasis we place on creating a pleasant, repeatable and
consistent customer experience at all our stores. We consistently set the bar higher
and higher in regards to serving our customers. At MW, we are not content to merely
satisfy them. We win them over completely. This is nol so much the result of rigorous
training as 1t Is the result of the unique MW culture that runs from the top down
through all our operations.

Another key differentiator between us and our peers is thal we have staked a slightly
different kind of claim in the tailored menswear marketplace. We don't live and die on
the strength of want-based fashion trends. Instead, our customers are primarily need-
hased and looking for the reliable retailer who understands their needs and
provides quality merchandise with a pleasant and satisfying experience free of hype
and attitude.

The final differentiators are found in our low rsk/high reward strategy and
conservative fiscal practices. We seek and study acquisilion targets that complement
our current footprint, such as After Hours, or extend our services to an underserved
segment, such as K&G. We weigh perceived risk against potential reward carefully.
We also maintain a conservative financial style, preferring to deleverage the Company
whenever possible in order to free up free cash. With this free cash, we can rapidly
exploit opportunities as they arise without incurring additional debt or sapping the
strength of our balance sheet. At Men's Wearhouse, calculated risk is often
synonymous with opportunity.

We consistently set the bar much higher

in regards to serving our customers.




OUR PEOPLE -
OUR GREATESY
ASSET

RESULTS THAT
REFLECT THE
EFFORT

WORKING A
HEALTHY GROWTH
AGENDA

In 2006 we ranked once again in Fortune Magazine's list of the “100 Best Companies
To Work For," a list compiled by the Great Places To Work Institute in San Francisco
that is based on two criteria: the policies and culture of the company, and the
salisfaction and opinions of the employees. This is an important ranking because it
validales our unique approach to our business and it proves that when a workforce is
treated with respect and encouragement, there’s no limit to where it can take the
company. We want people to come work for us and we want them to find rewarding
careers within our organization. And we let them know it. We try everyday to lead
by example.

For fiscal 2006, consolidated aperating income increased 35.5% from $165.3 million
10 $223.9 million. As in years past, e principal drivers of our fundamental earnings
growth included: increases in comparable store sales of 1.9% in the United States
and 8.7% in Canada; and a net increase of 7.9% in retail square foot selling space,
which resulted in a consolidated sales increase of 9.1% over fiscal 2005, reaching
$1.9 billion. Also @ key driver of our growth, our gross margin, as a percentage of
sales, improved 292 basis points over the prior year and reached 43.3%. This
improvernent is a direct result of rlsing merchandise margins. Our selling, generai and
administrative expenses, as a percentage of sales, increased 61 basis points, driven
by higher payroll and infrastructure costs, which reflect our commitment to our
workforce and prudent investment for future growth.

Fiscal 2006 was also significant for several other financial achievements. in
January 2007, we completed the redemption of the full $130 million aggregate
principal amount of our 3.125% Convertible Senior Notes due in 2023, thus
strengthening our balance sheet and improving our fiscal profile. Throughout the year,
we repurchased 1,134,000 shares of our common stock under our authorized $100
million Share Repurchase Plan. For the first time in the Company's history, we paid
four consecutive quarters of cash dividends, totaling $0.20 per share for 2006 to our
shareholders of record. Accordingly, our Board of Directors decided to raise the
quarterly cash dividend amount by 20% to $0.06 per share, payable on July 6, 2007.

Since the beginning of Men’s Wearhouse, our growth agenda has been four-pronged,
covering the following areas of aclivity:

¢ organic growth,

e acquisitions,

s brand exiensions and leverage, -

« exploration and development of complementary business models.

We weigh perceived visk against
potential veward carefully.




ENHANCING
OUR EXISTING
BUSINESSES

—e

Throughout fiscal 2006, we grew our total store count to 752 ard 5,939,100 square
feet in the United States and Canada, from the prior year levels of 719 and 5,453,400
square feel, respectively. In November, we announced our infention to acquire
Atter Hours Formalwear, the largest men’s formalwear chain in the United States.
This acquisilion, which closed on April 9, 2007, adds 500+ stores 10 our presence
and brings our total locations to 1,160+ locations with an estimated baseline volume
of three million tuxedo rental units in North America. Atter Hours also has a marketing
relationship with David's Bridal, the nation's largest bridal retailer.

{t is estimated that approximately 50% of all employees in the United States wear an
employer-mandated uniform. We are actively developing and growing a business that
leverages our retail culture and infrastructure competencies o capiure a meaningful
share of that market over the long term. We are doing this through TwinHill, our
corporate apparel division, which achieved significant new business during fiscal
2006 with major domestic and multinational U.S. corporate customer accounts.

In regards to our MW Cleaners concepl, we continug [0 evaluate its performance as
well as other cross-pollination opportunities, such as leveraging our Men's Wearhouse
store traffic and directing it through promotion and incentive offers to drive traffic to
MW Cleaners. We are also activety exploring operating techniques that can improve
quality and convenience for customers. Our plans call for an increase of five stores in
fiscal 2007 as we further its development.

An important element of our future growth and business strategy is the opportunity
for pull-through business from our renlal operations, our corporate apparel business,
our dry cleaning operations to our retail apparel stores.

* Men's Wearhouse grew by 17 locations in 2006 and ended the ysar with
approximately $1,216.2 million in sales. Apparel sales increased 5.5% over
the prior years results and accounted for 84.7% of total sales. Tuxeda rentals
increased 22.6% and accounted for B,.9% of total sales. As always, we
continug to make operating and ¢apital investments to keep our stores current
and appealing.

» Moores, our Canadian menswear brand, is the largest retailer of men’s suils in
Canada. With its success in the tuxedo rental business, Moores ended the
year with $259.3 million Canadian in sales, an 11.3% increase over the prior
year's performance.

When a workforce is treated with

respect and encouragement, there’s no limit

to where they can take the company.




WHAT'S NEXT?

e  K&G, our “big-box" retail concept, has also grown by 16 units and ended the
year with approximately $418.3 million in total sales, an 8.9% increase over the
prior year. With its focus on both men and women price-sensilive, style-
conscious customers who desire an assortment of tailored clothing, we believe
that K&G serves a market that is not addressed by the higher-priced department
stores nor the general retail deep discounters.

* In September 2006, we debuted a new look for our Men's Wearhouse website
with an emphasis on a more commercial style. This customer-friendly guide-to-
menswear approach includes a more intuitive organization io the site itsell.
Industry estimates indicate that by 2011, more than 40% of all offline sales will
be influenced by the Internet.

Although we anticipate some softening of the taitored menswear market in the United
States in 2007, we believe that we have not yet reached market saturation. We plan
to add 19 net new stores far Men's Wearhouse and 15 new stores for K&G. Excluding
the recently acquired operations of After Hours, we expect total safes for fiscal 2007
on a comparable 52-week basis to increase between 5% and 7% over fiscal 2006.
We believe that our gross marging will continue lo improve, largely based on our
ongoing efforts to increase penetration of our private label apparel offerings and
continued growth in luxedo rentals. Finally, on a comparable 52-week basis, we
believe that our operating income will improve by 50 to 90 basis points in 2007.

In closing, I'd like to congratulate all our people on a job exceedingly well done in
2006 and thank our stakeholders for their continuing commitment to, and confidence
in, The Men's Wearhouse Companies.

Sincerely,

George Zimmer
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

We reported a bistovical level of net earnings.
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Information Regarding Certification to the NYSE and SEC

On July 11, 2006, George Zimmer, the company’s Chairman
of the Board and Chief Exccutive Officer, submitted to the New
York Stock Exchange {the "NYSE"} an annual certification stdting
that he was not aware of any violatien by the company of the
NYSE's corporate governance listing standards as of the date
thereof, as required by Section 303A.12{(a) of the NYSE's Listed

Company Manual.

In addition, the company filed with the SEC, as an exhibit to its
Annual Report Farm 10K for the fiscal year ended February k)
2007, the Sarbanes Ouley Act Section 302 certifications rcgdrdmg
the quality of the company's public disclosure.
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PART 1

Item 1. Business
General

The Men’s Wearhouse began operations in 1973 as a partnership and was incorporaled as The Men's
Wearhouse, Inc. {the “Company™) under the laws of Texas in May 1974. Our principal corporate and execulive
offices are located at 5803 Glenmont Drive, Houston, Texas 77081-1701 (telephone number 713/592-7200), and at
40650 Encyclopedia Circle, Fremont, California 94538-2453 (telephone number 510/657-9821), respectively.
Unless the context otherwise requires, “Company™, “we", “‘us” and “our” refer to The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. and its
wholly owned subsidiaries.

Qur website address is www.tmw.com. Through the investor relations section of our website, we provide free
access 1o our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all
amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™). The SEC also maintains a website that contains the

Company's filings at www.sec.gov.

On November 16, 2006, we entered into a definitive stock purchase agreement with Federated Department
Stores, Inc. and David’s Bridal, Inc. to acquire After Hours Formalwear, Inc. (“After Hours”) for a cash
consideration of $100.0 million, subject to certain adjustments. After Hours is the largest men's formalwear
chain in the United States and operates 507 stores in 35 states under Afier Hours Formalwear and Mr. Tux store
fronts. After Hours has an exclusive relationship with David's Bridal, Inc., the nation’s largest bridal rctailer with
269 stores and an online offering. That exclusivity will remain effective after the acquisition and will be extended to
Men's Wearhouse and Moores store brands. The acquisition is conditioned upon. among other things, the
termination or expiration of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of
1976 and other customary closing conditions. On March 23, 2007, we announced that the Federal Trade Commision
had terminated its review and that we expect o close the acquisition on or before April 9, 2007.

The Company

We are one of the largest specialty retailers of men's suits in the United States and Canada. At February 3,
2007, our U.S. operations included 636 retail apparel stores in 45 states and the District of Columbia, primanly
operating under the brand names of Men's Wearhouse and K&G Fashion Supersiores. At February 3, 2007, our
Canadian operations included 116 retail apparei stores in 10 provinces operating under the brand name of Moores
Clothing for Men. Below is a brief description of our brands:

Men's Wearhouse

Under the Men's Wearhouse brand, we target middle and upper-middle income men by offering quality
merchandise at everyday low prices. In addition to value, we believe we provide a superior level of customer
service. Men's Wearhouse stores offer a broad selection of designer, brand name and private label merchandise at
prices we believe are typically 20% to 30% below the regular prices found at traditional department and specialty
stores. Our merchandise includes suits, sport coats, slacks, formal wear, business casual, sportswear, outenwvear,
dress shirts, shoes and accessories. We concentrate on men’s “wear-to-work” business attire that is characterized by
infrequent and more predictable fashion changes. Therefore, we believe we are not as exposed to trends typical of
more fashion-forward apparel retailers, where significant markdowns and promotional pricing are more common.
At February 3, 2007, we operated 543 Men’s Wearhouse stores in 45 states and the District of Columbia. These
stores are referred to as "Men's Wearhouse stores” or “traditional siores”.

We also began a tuxedo rental program in selected Men's Wearhouse stores during [999 and now offer tuxedo
rentals in substantially all of our Men's Wearhouse stores. We believe this program generates incremental business
for us without significant incremental personnel or real estate costs and broadens our customer base by drawing
first-time and younger customers into our stores.




Forward-Looking and Cautionary Statements

Certain statemenis made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in other public filings and press releases by
the Company contain “forward-looking " information (as defined in the Privaie Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995) that involves risk and uncertainty. These forward-looking siatements may include, but are not limited to,
references to future capital expenditures, acquisitions, sales, earnings, margins, costs, number and costs of store
openings, demand for clothing, market trends in the retail clothing business, currency fluctuations, inflation and
various economic and business trends. Forward-looking statements may be made by management orally or in
writing, including, but not limited to, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and other sections of our filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Securities Act of 1933,

Forward-looking statements are not guaraniees of future performance and a variety of factors could cause
actual results 1o differ marerially from the anticipaied or expected results expressed in or suggested by these
forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause or contribute 1o such differences include, but are not lim ited
10, actions by governmental entities, domestic and international economic activity and inflation, our successful
execution of internal operating plans and new store and new market expansion plans, including successful
integration of acquisitions, performance issues with key suppliers, disruption in buying trends due to homeland
security concerns, severe weather, foreign currency fluctuations, government export and import policies, aggressive
advertising or marketing activities of competitors and legal proceedings. Future results will also be dependent upon
our ability to continue 1o identify and complete successful expansions and penetrations into existing and new
markets and our ability 1o integrate such expansions with our existing operations. Refer to “Risk Factors”
contained in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a mare complete discussion of these and other factors
that might affect our performance and financial results. These forward-looking statements are intended 10 relay the
Company’s expectations about the future, and speak only as of the date they are made. We undertake no obligation
to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statemenr, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise.




K&G

Under the K&G brand, we target the more price sensitive customer. At February 3, 2007, we operated 93 K&G
stores in 27 states. Seventy-three of the K&G stores offer ladies’ career apparel that is also targeted to the more price
sensitive customer.

We believe that K&G’s more value-oriented superstore approach appeals to certain customers in the appare!
market. K&G offers first-quality, current-season apparel and accessories comparable in quality to that of traditional
department and specialty stores, at everyday low prices we believe are typically 30% to 50% below the regular
prices charged by such stores. K&G's merchandising strategy emphasizes broad assortments across all major
categories, including tailored clothing, casual sponiswear, dress fumishings, footwear and accessories. This
merchandise selection, which includes brand name as well as private label merchandise, positions K&G to attract
a wide range of customers in each of its markets.

Moores

Under the Moores brand, we target middle and upper-middle income men in Canada by offering quality
merchandise at everyday low prices. Moores is one of Canada’s leading specialty retailers of men’s suits, with 116
retail apparel stores in 10 Canadian provinces at February 3, 2007. Similar to the Men’s Wearhouse stores, Moores
stores offer a broad selection of quality merchandise at prices we believe are typically 20% to 30% below the regular
prices charged by traditional Canadian department and specialty stores. Moores focuses on conservative, busic
tailored apparel that we believe limits exposure to changes in fashion trends and the need for significant markdowns.
Moores’ merchandise consists of suits, sport coats, slacks, business casual, dress shins, sportswear, outerwear,
shoes and accessories.

In October 2003, we extended our tuxedo rental program to our Canada stores and now offer tuxedo rentals at
all of our Moores stores.

Moores manufactures a portion of the tailored clothing for sale in its stores. Moores conducts its manufacturing
operations through its wholly owned subsidiary, Golden Brand Clothing (Canada) Ld. (“Golden Brand™). Golden
Brand’s manufacturing facility in Montreal, Quebec, includes a cutting room, fusing department, pant shop and coat
shop. At full capacity, the coat shop can produce 10,000 units per week and the pant shop can produce 18.600 units
per week. Golden Brand also manufactures product for Men's Wearhouse stores.

Expansion Strategy
Qur expansion strategy includes:
» opening additional Men’s Wearhouse, K&G and Moores stores in new and existing markets,
» expanding our retail dry cleaning operations and our corporatc apparel and uniform program,
» closing our pending acquisition of After Hours Formalwear, Inc. and integrating its operations, and
« identifying strategic acquisition opportunities, including but not limited to international operations.

In general terms, we consider a geographic area served by a common group of television stations as a single
market.

At present, in 2007 we plan to open approximately 21 new Men's Wearhouse stores and 15 new K&G stores, to
close two Men's Wearhouse stores, 10 expand and/or relocate approximately 26 existing Men's Wearhouse stores
and four existing K&G stores and to continue expansion in subsequent years. We believe that our ability to increase
the number of traditional stores in the United States above 600 will be limited. However, we believe that additional
growth opportunities exist through improving and diversifying the merchandise mix, relocating existing stores,
expanding our K&G brand and adding complementary products and services.

In 2007 we also plan to open five retail dry cleaning and laundry facilities in the Houston, Texas area. We may
open or acquire additional facilities on a limited basis in 2007 as we continue to test market and evalvate the
feasibility of developing a national retail dry cleaning and laundry line of business. As of February 3, 2007, we are
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operating 30 retail dry cleaning and laundry facilities in the Houslon, Texas area. In addition, we continue 10 pursue
our corporate apparel and uniform program by entering into contracts to provide corporate uniforms to our
customers’ workforces. As of February 3, 2007, we are servicing approximately nine contract customers.

On November 16, 2006, we entered into a definitive stock purchase agreement with Federated Department
Stores, Inc. and David's Bridal, Inc, to acquire After Hours Formalwear, Inc. (“After Hours™) for a cash
consideration of $100.0 million, subject to certain adjustments. After Hours is the largest men’s formalwear
chain in the United States and operates 507 stores in 35 states under After Hours Formalwear and Mr. Tux store
fronts. After Hours has an exclusive relationship with David's Bridal, Inc., the nation’s largest bridal retailer with
269 stores and an online offering. That exclusivity will cemain effective after the acquisition and will be extended to
Men's Wearhouse and Moores store brands. The acquisition is conditioned upon, among other things, the
termination or expiration of the waiting period under the Han-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of
1976 and other customary closing conditions. On March 23, 2007, we announced that the Federal Trade
Commission had terminated its review and that we expect to close the acquisition on or before April 9, 2007

Merchandising

Our stores offer a broad selection of designer, brand name and private label men’s business attire, including a
consistent stock of core items (such as basic suits, navy blazers and tuxedos). Although basic styles are emphasized,
each season’s merchandise reflects current fabric and color trends, and a small percentage of inventory, accessories
in particular, are usually more fashion oriented. The broad merchandise selection creates increased sales oppor-
tunities by permitting a customer to purchase substantially all of his tailored wardrobe and accessory requirements,
including shoes, at our stores. Within our tailered clothing, we offer an assortment of styles from a variety of
manufacturers and maintain a broad selection of fabrics, colors and sizes, Based on the experience and expertise of
our management, we believe that the depth of selection offered provides us with an advantage over most of our
competitors.

The Company's inventory mix includes “business casual” merchandise designed to meet demand for such
products resulting from more relaxed dress codes in the workplace. This merchandise consists of tailored and non-
tailored clothing (sport coats, casual slacks, knits and woven sports shirts, sweaters and casual shoes) that
complements the existing product mix and provides opportunity for enhanced sales without significant inventory
risk.

We do not purchase significant quantities of merchandise overruns or close-outs. We provide recognizable
quality merchandise at consistent prices that assist the customer in identifying the value available at our stores. We
believe that the merchandise at Men's Wearhouse and Maores stores is generally offered 20% to 30% below
traditional department and specialty store regular prices and that merchandise at K&G stores is generally 30% to
50% below regular retail prices charged by such stores. A ticket is generally affixed to items, which displays our
selling price alongside a price we believe reflects the regular, non-promotional price of the item at traditional
depanment and specialty stores.

By targeting men’s business attire, a category of men's clothing characterized by infrequent and more
predictable fashion changes, we believe we are not as exposed to trends typical of more fashion-forward apparel
retailers. This allows us 1o carry basic merchandise over to the following season and reduces the need for
markdowns; for example, a navy blazer or gray business suit may be carried over o the next season. Our Men's
Wearhouse and Moores stores have an annual sale that starts around Christmas and runs through the month of
January, during which prices on many items are reduced 20% to 50% off the everyday low prices. This sale reduces
stock at year-end and prepares for the arrival of the new season’s merchandise. We also have a similar event in mid-
summer; however, the level of advertising for promotion of the summer event is lower than that for the year-end
event.

During 2004, 2005 and 2006, 54.1%, 53.0% and 52.4%, respectively, of our total net clothing product sales
were attributable to tailored clothing (suits, sport coats and slacks) and 45.9%, 47.0% and 47.6%, respectively, were
attributable (o casual attire, sportswear, shoes, shirts, ties, outerwear and other clothing product revenues.
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In addition to accepting cash, checks or nationally recognized credit cards, we offer our own private label
credit card to Men's Wearhouse and, prior to August 2006, to Moores customers. A third-party vendor provides all
necessary servicing and processing and assumes all credit risks associated with the private label credit card
program. Since September 2004, all purchases made with the private label credit card at Men’s Wearhouse stores
receive a 5% discount at the time of purchase. During 2006, our customers used the private label credit card for
approximately 9% of our sales at Men’s Wearhouse stores and approximately 5% of our sales at Moores stores.

We also offer our “Perfect Fit” loyalty program to our Men's Wearhouse and Moores customers. Under the
loyalty program, customers receive points for purchases. Points are equivalent to dollars spent on a one-for-one
basis, excluding any sales tax dollars. Upon reaching 500 points, customers are issued a $50 rewards certificate
which they may use to make purchases at Men's Wearhouse or Moores stores. We believe that the loyalty program
facilitates our ability to cultivate long-term relationships with our customers. All customers who register for our
“Perfect Fit" loyalty program are eligible to participate and earn points for purchases. Prior to September 2004 at
Men's Wearhouse and August 2006 at Moores, loyally program points were carned only on purchases made with
our private label credit card.

Customer Service and Marketing

The Men's Wearhouse and Moores sales personnel are trained as clothing consultants to provide customers
with assistance and advice on their apparel needs, including product style, color coordination, fabric choice and
garment fit. For example, many clothing consultants a1 Men’s Wearhouse stores attend an intensive training
program at our training facility in Fremont, California, which is further supplemented with store meetings, in-
market training programs and frequent interaction with all levels of store management.

We encourage our clothing consultants to be friendly and knowledgeable and to promptly greet each customer
entering the store. Consultants are encouraged to offer guidance to the customer at each stage of the decision-
making process, making every effort to earn the customer’s confidence and to create a professional relationship that
will continue beyond the initial visit. Clothing consultants are also encouraged to contact customers after the
purchase or pick-up of tailored clothing to determine whether customers are satisfied with their purchases and, if
necessary, to take corrective action. Store personnel as well as Men's Wearhouse customer services representatives
operating from our corporate offices have full authority to respond to customer complaints and reasonable requests,
including the approval of retumns, exchanges, refunds, re-alterations and other special requests, all of which we
believe helps promote customer satisfaction and loyalty.

K&G stores are designed to allow customers to selcct and purchase apparel by themselves. For example, each
merchandise category is clearly marked and organized by size, and suits are specifically tagged “Athletic Fit,"
“Double-Breasted,” “Three Button,” elc., as a means of further assisting customers to easily select their styles and
sizes. K&G employees are also available to assist customers with merchandise selection, including correct sizing.

Each of our stores provides on-site tailoring services to facilitate timely alierations at a reasonable cost to
customers. Tailored clothing purchased at a Men's Wearhouse store will be pressed and re-altered (if the alterations
were performed at a Men's Wearhouse store) free of charge for the life of the garment.

Because management believes that men prefer direct and easy store access, we attempt to locate our stores in
regional strip and specialty retail centers or in freestanding buildings to enable customers to park near the entrance
of the store.

Our total annual advertising expenditures, which were $60.5 million, $61.5 million and $67.3 million in 2004,
2005 and 2006, respectively, are significant. The Company advertises principally on television and radio, which we
consider the most effective means of attracting and reaching potential customers, and our advertising campaign is
designed to reinforce our various brands.

Purchasing and Distribution

We purchase merchandise from approximately 800 vendors. In 2006, no vendor accounted for 10% or more of
purchases. Management does not believe that the loss of any vendor would significantly impact us. While we have
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no material long-term contracts with our vendors, we believe that we have developed zn excellent relationship with
our vendors, which is supported by consistent purchasing practices.

We believe we obtain favorable buying opportunities relative to many of our competitors. We do not request
cooperative adventising support from manufacturers, which reduces the manufacturers’ costs of doing business with
us and enables them to offer us lower prices. Further, we believe we obtain better discounts by entering into
purchase arrangements that provide for limited retumn policies, although we always retain the right to return goods
that are damaged upon receipt or determined to be improperly manufactured. Finally, volume purchasing of
specifically planned quantities well in advance of the season enables more efficient production runs by manu-
facturers who, in turn, generally pass some of the cost savings back to us.

We purchase a significant portion of our inventory through a direct sourcing program. [n addition to finished
product, we purchase fabric from milis and contract with certain factories for the assembly of the finished product to
be sold in our U.S. and Canadian stores. Qur direct sourcing arrangements for fabric and assembly have been with
foreign mills and factories. During 2004, 2005 and 2006, product procured through the direct sourcing program
represented approximately 30%, 32% and 37%, respectively, of total inventory purchases for stores operating in the
U.S. During 2004, 2005, and 2006, product procured through the direct sourcing program represented approx-
imately 63%, 64% and 66%, respectively, of total inventory purchases for stores operating in Canada. We expect
that purchases through the direct sourcing program will represent approximately 40% and 75% of total U.S. and
(Canada purchases, respectively in 2007. During 2004, 2005 and 2006, our manufacturing operations at Golden
Brand provided 32%, 23% and 14%, respectively, of inventory purchases for Moores stores and 10%, 8% and 8%,
respectively, of inventory purchases for Men's Wearhouse stores. We believe that our direct sourcing of product,
with both owned and third party labels, has been and will continue to be a significant factor in our ability to improve
our gross product margins.

To protect against currency exchange risks associated with certain firmly committed and certain other
probable, but not firmly committed, inventory transactions denominated in a foreign currency (primarily the Euro),
we enter into forward exchange contracts. In addition, many of the purchases from foreign vendors are secured by
letters of credit.

We have entered into license agreements with a limited number of parties under which we are entitled to use
designer labels such as “Gary Player®” and nationally recognized brand labels such as “Botany®” and "Botany
500%” in return for royalties paid to the licensor based on the costs of the relevant product. These license agreements
generally limit the use of the individual label to products of a specific nature (such as men’s suits, men’s formal wear
or men's shins). The labels licensed under these agreements will continue to be used in connection with a portion of
the purchases under the direct sourcing program described above, as well as purchases from other vendors. We
monitor the performance of these licensed labels compared to their cost and may elect to selectively terminate any
license, as provided in the respective agreement. We have also purchased several trademarks, including
“Cricketeer®” “Joseph & Feiss®” “Pronto Uomo®,"” “Linea Uomo®,” and “Twinhill®” which are used similarly
to our licensed labels. Because of the continued consolidation in the men’s tailored clothing industry, we may be
presented with opportunities to acquire or license other designer or nationally recognized brand labels.

All merchandise for Men's Wearhouse stores is received inlo our central warehouse located in Houston, Texas.
Merchandise for a store is picked and then moved to the appropriate staging area for shipping. In addition to the
central distribution center in Houston, we have separale hub warehouse facilities or space within cerain Men's
Wearhouse stores in the majority of our markets, which functien as redistribution facilities for their respective areas.
[n 20035, our K&G stores began to receive merchandise consistent with our Men's Wearhouse stores from our central
warehouse tocated in Houston, Texas. Currently, approximately 80% of purchased merchandise is transported to
our K&G stores from our central distribution center in Houston. All other merchandise is direct shipped by vendors
1o the stores. We anticipate that we will continue o transport merchandise to our K&G stores using a combination of
our central distribution center and direct shipment from vendors. Most purchased merchandise for our Moores
stares is distributed to the stores from our warehouse in Montreal.

As of the end of fiscal 2006, we leased and operated 24 long-haul tractors and 67 trailers, which, together with
common carriers, were used 1o transport merchandise from the vendors to our distribution facilities and from the
distribution facilities to Men’s Wearhouse stores within cach market. A majority of all merchandise transported
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from the vendors (o our distribution facilities and from the distribution facilities to our K&G stores is transported by
common carriers. We also lease or own 123 smalter van-like tracks, which are used to deliver merchandise locally
or within a given geographic region. [n March 2007, we entered into a three year transportation agreement,
commencing April 2, 2007, with Ryder Integrated Logistics, Inc., to execute shipments from vendors 10 our
distribution facilities in Houston, Texas, and from the distribution facilities 1o regional transportaticn hubs or stores
within a regional service area. The transportation agreement terminated our Jeasing agreements for the 24 tong-haul
tractors and 67 trailers.

Competition

Qur primary competitors include specialty men’s clothing stores, traditional department stores, off-price
retailers, manufacturer-owned and independently owned outlet stores and their E-commerce channels. Over the past
several years markel conditions have resulted in consolidation of the industry. We believe that the principal
competitive factors in the menswear market are merchandise assortment, quality, price, garment fit, merchandise
presentation, store location and customer service.

We believe that strong vendor relationships, our direct sourcing program and our buying volumes and patterns
are the principal factors enabling us to obtain quality merchandise at atiractive prices. We believe that our vendors
rely on our predictable payment record and history of honoring promises, including our promise not 1o advertise
names of labeled and unlabeled designer merchandise when requested. Certain of our competitors (principally
department stores) may be larger and may have substantially greater financial, marketing and other resources than
we have and therefore may have certain competitive advantages.

Seasonality

Our business is subject 10 seasonal fluctuations. In most years, a significant portion of our net sales and our net
earnings have been generated during the fourth quarter of each year when holiday season shopping peaks, In
addition, our increased tuxedo rental business during the prom and wedding seasons has increased the significance
of our second quarter net sales and net earnings. Because of the seasonality of our business, results for any quarter
are not necessarily indicative of the resulls that may be achieved for the full year (see Note 13 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements}.

Trademarks and Servicemarks

We are the owner in the United States of the trademark and servicemark *“The Men’s Wearhouse®” and “Men’s
Wearhouse™ and of federal registrations therefor expiring in 2009, 2010, 2012 and 2017, respectively, subject to
renewal. We have also been granted registrations for that trademark and servicemark in 43 of the 45 states
{including Texas and Califomia) in which we currently do business (as well as the District of Columbia and Puerto
Rico) and have used those marks. We are also the owner of "MW Men's Wearhouse (and design)®” and federal
registrations therefor expiring in 2010 and 2011, respectively, subject to renewal. Our rights in the *“The Men’s
Wearhouse®”’ and “MW Men's Wearhouse (and design) ®" marks are a significanmt part of our business, as the marks
have become well known through our television and radio advertising campaigns. Accordingly, we intend to
maintain our marks and the related registrations.

We are also the owner in the United States of the servicemarks "K&G®”, which is a tradename used by K&G
stores, and “The Suit Warehouse®” and “The Suit Warehouse (and logo),” which are tradenames used previously by
cenain of the stores in Michigan operated by K&G. K&G stores also operate under the tradenames “K&G Men's
Superstore®,” “K&G Men's Center,” “K&G MenSmarnt,” “K&G Suit Warehouse™ and “K&G Ladies®” We own the
registrations for “K&G®," “K&G (stylized)®,” “K&G For Men. For Women. For Less®,” “K&G For Men. For
Less®” “K&G Men's Superstore®,” “K&G Men’s Supersiore (and design)®,” “K&G Ladies®,” “K&G Fashion
Superstore” and “K&G Superstore®.” In addition, we own or license other trademarks/servicemarks used in the
business, principally in connection with the labeling of products purchased through the direct sourcing program.

We are also the owner in the United States of the service mark “MWCLEANERS®” as well as certain logos
incorporating “MWCLEANERS” or the letters “MW™ 10 identify dry cleaning services. We are also the owner of
“MW & Design (bow 1ie)®” and federal registration therefor expiring in 2016, subject to renewal.
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The application for the service mark “Women's Wearhouse” is pending,

We own Canadian trademark registrations for the marks “Moores The Suit People®,” “Moores Vetements Pour
Hommes®,” “Moores Vetements Pour Hommes (and design)®," “Moores Clothing For Men®" and “Moores
Clothing For Men (and design)®." Moores stores operate under the tradenames “Moores Clothing For Men™ and
“Moores Vetements Pour Hommes."

We are alsc the owner in Canada of the service mark “MWCLEANERS" as well as certain logos incorporating
“MWCLEANERS” or the letters “MW” to identify dry cleaning services. The applications are currenily pending
with the Canadian Trademarks Office.

Employees

At February 3, 2007, we had approximately 14,900 employees, of whom approximately 10,700 were full-time
and approximately 4,200 were part-time employees. Seasonality affects the number of parnt-time employees as well
as the number of hours worked by full-time and part-time personnel. Approximately 600 of our employees at
Golden Brand belong to the Union of Needletrades, Industrial and Textile Employees. Golden Brand is part of a
collective bargaining unit. The current union contract expires in November 2009.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We wish to caution you that there are risks and uncertainties that could affect our business. These risks and
uncentainties include, but are not limited to, the risks described below and elsewhere in this report. particularly
found in “Forward-Looking and Cautionary Statements.” The following is not intended to be a complete discussion
of all potential risks or uncertainties, as it is not possible to predict or identify all risk factors.

Our business is particularly sensitive to economic conditions and consumer confidence,

Consumer confidence is often adversely impacted by many factors including local, regional or national
economic conditions, continued threats of terrorism, acts of war and other unceriaintics. We believe that a decrease
in consumer spending in response 10 a decline in consumer confidence will affect us more than other retailers
because a slowing of men’s discretionary spending for items like tailored apparel tends to occur faster than that for
other retzail purchases.

Our ability to continue to expand our Men'’s Wearhouse stores may be limited.

A large part of our growth has resulted from the addition of new Men’s Wearhouse stores and the increased
sales volume and profitability provided by these stores. We will continue to depend on adding new stores to increase
our sales volume and profitability. As of February 3, 2007, we operate 543 Men's Wearhouse stores. However, we
believe that our ability to increase the number of Men’s Wearhouse stores in the United States above 600 will be
limited. Therefore, we cannot assure you that we will continue to experience the same rate of growth as we have
historically.

Certain of our expansion strategies may present greater risks,

We are continupusly assessing opportunities to expand complementary products and services related to our
traditional business, such as corporate apparel sales and retail dry cleaning establishments. We may expend both
capital and personne! resources on such business opportunities which may or may not be successful.

Any acquisitions that we undertake could be difficult to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockholder
value and harm our operating resulls.

In the event we complete one or more acquisitions, we may be subject to a variety of risks, including risks
associated with an ability to integraie acquired assets or operations into our existing operations, higher costs or
unexpected difficulties or problems with acquired assets or entities, outdated or incompatible technologies, labor
difficultics or an inability to realize anticipated synergies and efficiencies, whether within anticipated timeframes or
at all. If one or more of these risks are realized, it could have an adverse impact on our operalions.
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Our business is seasonal,

Ln most years, a significant portion of our net sales and our net earnings have been generated during November,
December and January. In addition, our increased tuxedo rental business during the prom and wedding seasons has
increased the significance of our second quarter net sales and net eamings. Accordingly, our results for any quarter
are not necessarily indicative of our annual profitability and any decrease in sales during these peak quarters could
have a significant adverse effect on cur net eamnings.

Sales in the men’s tailored clothing market have changed modestly over recent years.

According to industry sources, sales in the men’s tailored clothing market increased modestly in 2004 and in
2005 and declined slightly in 2006. We believe that these modest changes are representative of weakening demand
for men’s tailored clothing. As a result we may not be able to continue to expand our sales volume within our
segment of the retailing industry.

The loss of, or disruption in, our centralized distribution center could result in delays in the delivery of
merchandise to our stores.

All merchandise for Men’s Wearhouse stores and a majority of the merchandise for K&G stores is received
into our centralized distribution center in Houston, Texas, where the inventory is then processed, sorted and shipped
to our stores. In addition, over 70% of our U.S. tuxedo rental product and our unit rentals are maintained and
processed through this facility. We depend in large part on the orderly operation of this receiving and distribution
process, which depends, in turn, on adherence to shipping schedules and effective management of the distribution
center. Events, such as disruptions in operations due 1o fire or other catasirophic events, employee matters or
shipping problems, may result in delays in the delivery of merchandise and/or tuxedo rentals to our stores. For
example, given our proximity to the Texas Gulf Coast, it is possible thal a hurricane or trepical storm could cause
damage to the distribution center, result in extended power outages, or flood roadways into and around the
distribution center, any of which would disrupt or delay deliveries to the distribution center and to our stores.

Although we maintain business interruption and property insurance, we cannot assure you that our insurance
will be sufficient, or that insurance proceeds will be timely paid to us, in the event our distribution center is shut
down for any reason or if we incur higher costs and longer lead times in connection with a disruption at our
disiribution center.

Our stock price has been and may continue to be volatile due to many factors.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuated in the past and may change rapidly in the future
depending on news announcements and changes in general market conditions. The following factors, among others,
may cause significant fluctuatiens in our stock price:

* news announcements regarding quarterly or annual results of operations,

« comparable store sales announcements,

* acquisitions,

* competitive developments,

« litigation affecting the Company, or

* market views as to the prospects of the retail industry generally.
Rights of our shareholders may be negatively affected if we issue any of the shares of preferred stock
which our Board of Directors has authorized for issuance.

We have available for issuance 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $.01 per share. Our Board of
Directors is authorized to issue any or all of this preferred stock, in one or more series, without any further action on
the part of shareholders. The rights of our shareholders may be negatively affected if we issue a series of preferred
stock in the future that has preference over our common stock with respect to the payment of dividends or
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distribution upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up. Sec Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Siatements for more information.

Our success significantly depends on our key personnel and our ability to attract and retain additional
persoanel.

Mr. George Zimmer has been very important to our success. Mr. Zimmer is the Company’s Chairman of the
Board. Chief Executive Officer and primary advertising spokesman. The loss of Mr. Zimmer's services could have a
material adverse effect on the securities markets® view of our prospects.

Also, our continued success and the achievement of our expansion goals are dependent upon our ability to
attract and retain additional quatified employees as we cxpand.

Fluctuations in exchange rates may cause us to experience currency exchange losses.

Moores conducts most of its business in Canadian dollars. The exchange rate between Canadian dollars and
U.S. doltars has fluctuated historically. If the value of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar weakens, then the
revenues and earnings of our Canadian operations will be reduced when they are translated to U.S. dollars. Also, the
value of our Canadian net assets in 1.5, dollars may decline.

In connection with our direct sourcing program, we may enter into purchase commitments that are denom-
inated in o foreign currency (primarily the Euro), which create currency exchange risks. If the value of foreign
currency strengthens, then the cost in U.S, dollars wo purchase such goods would increase.

We are subject to import risks, including potential disruptions in supply, changes in duties, tariffs, quotas
and voluniary export restrictions on imparted merchandise, strikes and other events affecting delivery;
and economic, political or other problems in countries from or through which merchandise is imported.

Many of the products sold in our stores are sourced from many foreign countries. Political or financial
instability, terrorism, trade restrictions, tariffs, currency exchange rates, transport capacity limitations, disruptions
and costs, strikes and other work stoppages and other factors relating to international trade are beyond our contrel
and could affect the availability and the price of our inventory.

If we are unable to operate information systems and implement new technologies effectively, our business
could be disrupted or our sales or profitability could be reduced.

The efficient operation of our business is dependent on our information systems, including our ability to
operate them effectively and successfully to implement new technologies, systems, controls and adequate disaster
recovery systems. In addition, we must protect the confidentiality of our and our customers’ data. The failure of our
information systems to perform as designed or our failure to implement and operate them effectively could disrupt
our business or subject us to liability and thereby harm our profitability.

Item 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments

None.




Item 2. Properties

As of February 3, 2007, we operated 636 retail apparel stores in 45 states und the District of Columbia and 116
retail apparel stores in the 10 Canadian provinces. The following lable sets forth the location, by state or province, of
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Men's Wearhouse and Moores stores vary in size from approximately 3,100 to 15,100 total square feet
(average square footage at February 3, 2007 was 5,669 square feel with 65% of stores having between 4,500 and
6,500 square feet). Men's Wearhouse and Moores stores are primarily located in middle and upper-middle income
regional strip and specialty retail shopping centers. We believe our customers generalty prefer 10 limit the amount of
time they spend shopping for menswear and seck easily accessible store sites.

Men’s Wearhouse and Moores stores are designed to further our strategy of facilitating sales while making the
shopping experience pleasurable. We attemnpt to create a specialty store atmosphere through cffective merchandise
presentation and sizing, attractive in-store signs and efficient checkout procedures. Most of these stores have similar
floor plans and merchandise presentation to facilitate the shopping experience and sales process. Designer, brand
name and private label garments are intermixed, and emphasis is placed on the fit of the garment rather than on a
particular label or manufacturer. Each store is staffed with clothing consultants and sales associates and has a
tailoring facility with at least one tailor. Each store is also staffed with an operations manager or other tuxedo rental
specialist 1o facilitate the tuxedo rental process and enhance the customer’s experience in our store.

K&G stores vary in size from approximately 5,400 to 42,000 total square feet (average square foolage at
February 3, 2007 was 23,204 square feet with 52% of stores having between 15,000 and 25,000 square feet). K&G
stores are “destination” stores located primarily in second generation strip shopping centers that are easily
accessible from major highways and thoroughfares. K&G has created a 20,000 to 25,000 square foot prototype
men's and Jadies’ superstore with fitting rooms and convenient check-out, customer service and tailoring areas.
K&G stores are organized to convey the impression of a dominant assortment of first-quality merchandise and to
project a no-frills, value-oriemed warehouse atmosghere, Each element of store Jayout and merchandise presen-
tation is designed to reinforce K&G's strategy of providing a large selection and assortment in each category. We
seck 1o make K&G stores “customer friendly” by utilizing store signage and grouping merchandise by categories
and sizes, with brand name and private label merchandise intermixed. To provide our customers with a greater sense
of consistency and purchase opportunities, in September 2004 we extended our hours of operation at our K&G
stores from four to seven days a week. Prior to September 1, 2004, our K&G stores were open for business on
Thursdays, Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only, except for a limited number of Monday holidays and an expanded
schedule for certain holiday periods when the stores were open every day. Each store is typically staffed with a
manager, assistant manager and other employees who serve as customer service and sales personnel and cashiers.
Each store also has a tailoring facility with at least one tailor.

We lease our stores on terms generally from five to ten years with renewal options at higher fixed rates in most
cases. Leases typically provide for percentage rent over sales break points. Additionally, most leases provide for a
base rent as well as “triple net charges”, including but not limited to common area maintenance expenses, property
taxes, utilities, center promotions and insurance. In certain markets, we lease between 1,000 and 30,300 additional
square feet as a part of a Men’s Wearhouse store or in a separate hub warehouse unit to be utilized as a redistribution
facility in that geographic area. We also lease a 51,600 square foot facility near Seattle, Washington that functions
primarily as a warehouse and distribution facility for our tuxedo rental business in the northwestern U.S.

In 2006, we entered into a ten year lease for an approximately 297,600 square foot building in Pittston,
Pennsylvania. This building, which will function as a warehouse and distribution facility primarily for our tuxedo
rental business in the northeastern U.S., began operations in March 2007.

We own a 46-acre site in Houston, Texas on which we have developed our principal U.S. warehouse and
distribution facilities, This site is the location of an approximately 1,080,000 square foot facility that supports our
retail merchandise program, our tuxedo rental program and our in-house tuxedo dry cleaning operations. We also
plan 10 construct a new 25,000 square foot building on this site in 2007 to serve as our computer data center.

We also own a 240,000 square foot facility sitvated on approximately seven acres of land in Houston, Texas
which serves as an office, warehouse and distribution facility. Approximately 65,000 square feet of this facility is
currently used as office space for our financial, information technology and other departments with the remaining
175,000 square feel serving as a warehouse and distribution center.

In 2006, we entered into a ten year building lease agreement for approximately 206,000 rentable square feet.
This new building is located in Houston, Texas and will serve as office space for our financial, information
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technology and other departments allowing us 1o support future growth. Our existing office space will be converted
to warehouse and storage space, where appropriate. Our move to the new office building is expected to occur during
the third quarter of 2007.

We also own a 150,000 square foot facility, situated on an adjacent six acres lo the 240,000 square foot facility,
comprised of approximately 9,000 square feet of office space and 141,000 square feet serving as a warchouse and
distribution center.

Our executive offices in Fremont, California are housed in a 35,500 square foot facility that we own, This
facility serves as an office and training facility. We also lease approximately 25,000 square feet of additional office
space in four other locations.

K&G leases a 100,000 square foot facility in Atlanta, Georgia which serves as an office, distribution and store
facility. Approximately 35,000 square feet of this facility is used as office space for financial, information
technelogy and merchandising personnel, 23,000 square feet is used as a distribution center for store fixtures and
supplies and the remaining 42,000 square feet is used as a store.

Moores leases a 36,700 square foot facility in Toronto, Ontario, comprised of approximately 16,900 square
feet of office space and 19,800 square feet utilized for warehousing and distribution. In addition, Moores owns a
building near Toronto of approximately 131,000 square feet that is utilized as its tuxedo distribution center and a
79,000 square foot facility in Montreal, Quebec. The Mantreal facility is comprised of 75,400 square feet of
warchouse and distribution center operations and 3,600 square feet of office space. In addition, Moores leases a
230,000 square foot facility in Montreal, Quebec, comprised of approximately 13,000 square feet of office space,
37,600 square feet of warehouse space and 179,400 square feet of manufacturing space. Moores also leases
2,000 square feet of additional office space in Vancouver, British Columbia.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various routine legal proceedings, including ongoing litigation, incidental to the conduct of
our business. Management believes that none of these matiers will have a material adverse effect on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted [0 a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
February 3, 2007.




PART II

Item 8. Market for the Company’s Common Equity, Related Stackholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “MW.” The following table
sels forth, on a per share basis for the periods indicated, the high and low sale prices per share for our common stock
as reported by the New York Stock Exchange and the quarterly dividends declared on each share of common stock:

Low Dividend

High

Fiscal Year 2005
First quarter ended April 30,2005 ........... . ... .. ... ..., $29.37
Second quarter ended July 30,2005 .......... ... ... ... ... 37.44
Third quarter ended October 29, 2005. . ..................... 36.91
Fourth quanter ended Japuary 28,2006 . ... ... ............. 34.85

Fiscal Year 2006
First quarter ended April 29,2006 . ..............ccovnrinn. $37.30
Second quarter ended July 29,2006 ............ ... ... ..., 36.45
Third quarter ended October 28,2006, .. ................. ... 41.75
Fourth quarter ended February 3,2007 ...................... 44.56

$2167 $ —
27.33 —
22.75 —
23.67 0.05
$3020  $0.05
29.8) 0.05
30.03 0.05
36.89 0.05

On March 30, 2007, there were approximately 1.500 holders of record and approximately 7,400 beneficial

holders of our common stock.

In January 2007, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per share of our common
stock payable on March 30, 2007 to shareholders of record on March 20, 2007. The dividend payout is

approximately $2.7 million.

In March 2007, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.06 per share payable on July 6,

2007 to sharcholders of record at the close of business on June 27, 2007.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During fiscal year 2006, we repurchased 1,134,000 shares of our common stock at an average price of $35.53
for an aggregate cost of approximately $40.3 million. The following table presents information with respect to
purchases of common stock of the Company made during the quarter ended February 3, 2007 as defined by

Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Exchange Act:
(c}

Total

C)]

Number of Approximate

Shares

Dollar Value of

Purchased Shares that
as Part of May Yet Be

{a) (b) Publicly Purchased
Total Number Average Announced Under the
of Shares Price Paid Plans or Plans or
Period Purchased Per Share Programs Programs
{In thousands)
Qctober 29, 2006 through November 25,
2006 ... . 231,800 $37.89 231,800 $79.706
November 26, 2006 through December 30,
2006 . .. e 532,800 $37.53 532,800 £59.711
December 31, 2006 through February 3,
2007 . ... e — —_ — $59,711
Total. .. ... .. 764.600 $37.64 764,600 $59,711




Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting maiterial™ or 10 be
“filed" with the Securiiies and Exchange Commission, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into
any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchunge Act of 1934, each as amended, except to the
extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing.

The following graph compares, as of each of the dates indicated, the percentage change in the Company's
cumuliative total shareholder return on the Common Stock with the cumulative total return of the NYSE Composite
Index and the Retail Specialty Appare! [ndex. The graph assumes that the value of the investment in the Common
Stock and each index was $100 a1 February 2, 2002 and that all dividends paid by those companies included in the
indices were reinvested.

350
~{3= Company

—Zxr~ Dow Jones US Apparel Retailers /—
250 | —O— NYSE Composite Index

0 A
A

150

DOLLARS

50 ,

L] L) 1 L} I 4
2022002 2/01/2003 113172004 112912005 112812006 2032007

February 2, February 1, Jomuary 31, Jonuary 29, Jonuary 28, February 3,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Measurement Period (Fiscal Year |

Covered)

Company ..................... $100.00 $64.09 $106.54 $148.44  $237.69  $302.38
Dow Jones US Apparel Retailers. ... 100.00 82.32 113.54 12417 146.39 173.67
NYSE Composite Index .......... 100.00 86.76 115.94 140,29 160.04 193.37

The foregeing graph is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of future performance.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected statement of earnings, balance sheet and cash flow information for the fiscal years
indicated has been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The Selected Financial Data should
be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto. References herein o years are to the
Company’s 52-weck or 53-week fiscal year, which ends on the Saturday nearest January 31 in the following
calendar year. For example, references to “2006" mean the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007. Al fiscal years for
which financial information is included herein had 52 weeks, except 2006 which had 53 weeks.

1002 1003 1004 2005 2006
(Dollars and shares in thousands, except per
share and per square foot data)
Statement of Earnings Data:
Netsales. .......ocvivianenanns $1,205,049  $1,392,680 $1,546,679 §$1,724,898  $1,882,064
Gross margin . ...........0 .. 454,239 513,446 603,004 697,135 815,705
Operating income . ............. 69,300 81,783 118,088 165,296 223,938
Neteamings .................. 42355 49734 71,356 103,903 148,575
Per Common Share Data;
Basic net eamings per share ... ... $ 070 § 08 § 132 3% 193 3% 2.80
Diluted net eamings per share . . . .. $ 069 § 084 3 129 % 188 § 2.71
Weighted average common shares
outstanding ............ ... 60,885 58,184 54,044 53,753 53,11
Weighted average shares oulstanding
plus dilutive potential common
SHAMeS . .. o 61,316 58,943 55,220 55.365 54,749
Operating Information:
Percentage increasef(decrease) in
comparable store sales'":
Men’s Wearhouse. . ......... (3.3Y% 7.9% 8.2% 6.2% %
K&G........ooevivvnnn. (2.3)Y% 0.3)% 3.9% 16.4% (1.8)%
Moores .................. 2.1Y% (5.1)% 71.1% 27% 8.7%
Average square footage — all
stores® . L 7,174 7411 7,497 7,593 7,838
Average sales per square foot of
selling space™ .............. $ 319 % 338§ 368 $ 91 % 397
Number of retail appare] stores™:
Open at beginning of the period. . . . 680 689 693 707 719
Opened..............c.cooi, 16 13 20 18 35
Closed . ..o vii i (N ()] (6) (6) {2)
Open at end of the period ... ... 689 693 707 719 152
Cash Flow Information:
Capital expenditures . ........... $ 4738 $ 49663 § 85392 $ 66499 3 72904
Depreciation and amortization . . . .. 46,885 50,993 53.319 61,874 61,387
Purchase of treasury stock . ....... 28,058 109,186 11,186 90,280 40,289




February 1,  January 31, January 29, Janoary 28, February 3,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Balance Sheet Information:

Cash and cash equivalents .. .......... $ 84,924 $132,146  S$165008 § 200226 $ 179,694
Working capital . .. ................. 326,060 357,045 388,229 491,527 454,691
Total assets ... . ... vvivvii .. 780,104 878,127 993,322 1,123,274 1,056,952
Longtermdebt .. ......_. ... ...... 38,700 131,000 130,000 205,251 72,967
Shareholders" equity ................ 526,385 487,792 568,848 627,533 153,112
Cash dividends declared per share . . . . .. — — — 0.05 0.20

(1) Comparable store sales data is calculated by excluding the net sales of a store for any month of one period if the store was not gpen
throughout the same month of the prior period.

{2) Avernge square footage — all stores is calculuied by dividing the (otal square footage for all stores open 8y the end of the period by the
number of stores open at the end of such period.

(3) Average sales per square foo of selling space is calculnied by dividing tolal selling square footage for all stores open the entire year into 10ta)
sales for those stores. For 2006, the calculation excludes tota) sales for the 53rd week.

(4) Retail apparel stores include stores operating under our Men's Wearhouse, K&G and Moares brands,




Item 7. Management's Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Condition And Results Of Operations
General

The Men’s Wearhouse opened its first store in Houston, Texas in August 1973, and we are now one of the
largest specialty retailers of men's suits in the United States and Canada. At February 3, 2007, we operated 752 retail
apparel stores with 636 stores in the United States and 116 stores in Canada. Our U.S, stores are primarily operated
under the brand names of Men's Wearhouse (543 stores) and K&G (93 stores) in 45 states and the District of
Columbia. Our Canadian stores are operated under the brand name of Moores Clothing for Men in ten provinces.
For 2006, we had revenves of $1.882 billion and net earnings of $148.6 million, compared 10 revenues of
$1.725 billion and net earnings of $103.9 million in 2005 and revenues of $1.547 billion and net eamings of
$71.4 million in 2004. The more significant factors impacting these results are addressed in the “Results of
Operations” discussion below.

Under the Men’s Wearhouse and Mootes brands, which contributed approximately 77% of our revenues, we
target middle and upper-middle income men by offering quality merchandise at everyday low prices. Because we
concentrate on men's “wear-to-work” business attire which is characterized by infrequent and more predictable
fashion changes, we believe we are not as exposed to trends typical of more fashion-forward apparel retailers, where
significant markdowns and promotional pricing are more common. [n addition, because this inventory mix includes
“business casual” merchandise, we are able 10 meet demand for such preducts resulting from the trend over the past
decade toward more relaxed dress codes in the workplace. We also strive 1o provide a superior level of customer
service by training our sales personnel as clothing consultants and offering on-site tailoring services in each of our
stores. We believe that the quality, value, selection and service we provide to our Men’s Wearhouse and Moores
customers have been significant factors in enabling us 1o consistently gain market share within both the UJ.8. and
Canadian markets for men’s tailored apparel.

In addition, we have expanded our customer base and leveraged our existing infrastructure by offering our
tuxedo rental program in nearly all of our Men’s Wearhouse stores and in all of our Moores stores. As a percentage
of total revenues, tuxedo rentals have grown from 5.0% in 2004 to 5.6% in 2005 and 6.3% in 2006. These revenues
are expected to continue 10 increase in 2007 as the program continues to mature and as we complete our acquisition
of Afier Hours Formalwear, Inc. (discussed below) and integrale it into our operations.

Under the K&G brand, we target the more price sensitive customer with a value-oriented superstore approach.
K&G's merchandising strategy emphasizes broad assortments of men’s apparel across all major categories,
including tailored clothing, casual sporiswear, dress furnishings, footwear and accessories. In addition, 73 of
the 93 K&G stores operating at February 3, 2007 offer ladies’ career apparel that is also targeted to the more price
sensitive customer, Although K&G employees assist customers with merchandise selection, including correct
sizing, the stores are designed to allow customers 10 select and purchase apparel by themselves. Each store also
provides on-site tailoring services.

Our business is subject 1o seasonal fluctuations. In most years, a significant portion of our net sales and our net
eamnings have been generated during the fourth quarter of each year when holiday season shopping peaks. In
addition, our increased tuxedo rental business during the prom and wedding seasons has increased the significance
of our second quarter net sales and net earnings. Because of the seasonality of our business, results for any quarter
are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for the full year.

We opened 20 stores in 2004, 18 stores in 2005 and 35 stores in 2006 under our Men’s Wearhouse, K&G and
Moores brands. Expansion is generally continued within a market as long as management believes it will provide
profitable incremental sales volume. In 2007, we plan to open approximately 21 new Men’s Wearhouse stores and
15 new K&G stores and to expand andfor relocate approximately 26 existing Men's Wearhouse stores and four
existing K&G stores. The average cost (excluding telecommunications and point-of-sale equipment and inventory)
of opening a new slore is expected to be approximately $0.4 million in 2007. Although we believe that our ability to
increase the number of Men’s Wearhouse stores in the U.S. above 600 will be limited, we believe that additional
growth opportunities exist through improving and diversifying the merchandise mix, relocating stores, expanding
our K&G brand and adding complemeniary products and services.
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We have closed 14 stores in the three years ended February 3, 2007. Generally, in determining whether 1o ¢lose
a store, we consider the store’s historical and projected performance and the continued desirability of the store's
location. In determining store contribution, we consider net sales, cost of sales and other direct siore costs, but
exclude buying costs, corporate overhead, depreciation and amortization, financing cosls and advenising. Store
performance is continually monitored and, occasionally, as regions and shopping areas change, we may determine
that it is in our best interest o close or relocate a store. In 2004, six stores were closed due to substandard
performance or lease expiration. In 2005, four stores were closed due to substandard performance or lease
expiration and two stores were closed due to demographic changes in the areas and/or the proximity of a newly
opened store. In 2006, (wo stores were closed due to lease expiration, We plan to close two stores in 2007.

During fiscal year 2004, we opened six new casual clothing/sportswear concept stores {(dba “Eddie
Rodriguez™) in order (o test an expanded, more fashion-oriented merchandise concept for men and women. In
March 2005, it was determined that no further investments would be made into these test concept stores and., as of
June 30, 2005. all six of the stores had been closed. Net operating losses from these stores reduced diluted earnings
per share by $0.05 and $0.11 for fiscal 2004 and 2005. respectively.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, we opened two test bridal stores {(dba “Bride & Joy™) in the
San Francisco Bay Area in order 1o test additional opportunities in the bridal indusiry. A decision was made to exit
the test of these bridal stores and both locations were closed by the end of the third quaner of fiscal 2006.

On November 16, 2006, we entered into a definitive stock purchase agreement with Federated Depariment
Stores, Inc. and David's Bridal, Inc. 1o acquire After Hours Formalwear, Inc. (“After Hours”) for a cash
consideration of $100.0 million, subject to certain adjustments. After Hours is the largest men’s formalweur
chain in the United States and operates 507 stores in 35 siates under After Hours Formalwear and Mr. Tux store
fronts. After Hours has an exclusive relationship with David’s Bridal, Inc., the nation’s largest bridal retailer with
269 stores and an online offering. That exclusivity will remain effective after the acquisition and will be extended 1o
Men's Wearhouse and Moores store brands. The acquisition is conditioned upon, among other things, the
termination or expiration of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of
1976 and other customory closing conditions. On March 23, 2007, we announced that the Federal Trade
Commission had ierminated its review and that we expect to close the acquisition on or before April 9, 2007,

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires the appropriate application of accounting
policies in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In many instances, this also requires
management (o make estimates and assumptions about future events that affect the amounts and disclosures
included in our financial statements. We base our estimates on historical experience and various assumptions that
we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. However, since future events and conditions and their effects
cannot be determined with certainty, actual results will differ from our estimates and such differences could be
material to our financial statements.

Our accounting policies arc described in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. We
consistently apply these policies and periodically evaluate the reasonableness of our estimates in light of actual
events. Historically, we have found our critical accounting policies to be appropriate and our estimates and
assumptions reasonable. We believe our critical accounting policies and our most significant estimates are those
that relate to inventories and long-lived assets, including goodwill, cur estimated liabilities for the sell-insured
portions of our workers' compensation and employee health benefit costs, our income taxes, and our operating lease
accounting.

Qur inventory is carried at the lower of cost or markel. Cost is determined on the average cost method fur
approximately 73% of our inventory and on the retail inventory method for the remaining 27%. Our inventory cost
also includes estimated procurement und distribution costs {warehousing, freight, hangers and merchandising costs)
associated with the inventory, with the balance of such costs included in cost of sales. We make assumptions, based
primarily on historical experience, as to items in our inventory that may be damaged, obsolete or salable only at
marked down prices and reduce the cost of inventory to reflect the market value of these items. If actual damages,
obsolescence or market demand is significantly different from our estimates, additional inventory write-downs
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could be required. In addition, procurement and distribution costs are allocated to inventory based on the ratio of
annual product purchases to inventory cost. If this ratio were to change significantly, it could materially affect the
amount of procurement and distribution costs included in cost of sales.

We make judgments about the carrying value of long-lived assets, such as property and equipmemt and
amortizable intangibles, and the recoverability of goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that an other-than-temporary impairment in the remaining value of the assets recorded on our balance sheet may
exist. We test goodwill for impairment annually in the fourth quarter of each year or more frequently if
circumstances dictate. To estimate the fair value of long-lived assets, including goodwill, we make various
assumptions about the future prospects for the brand that the asset relates to and typically estimate future cash flows
to be generated by these brands. Based on these assumptions and estimates, we determine whether we need to take
an impairmemnt charge to reduce the value of the asset stated on our balance sheet (o reflect its estimated fair value.
Assumptions and estimates about future values and remaining useful lives are complex and often subjective. They
can be affected by a variety of factors, including external factors, such as industry and economic trends, and internal
factors, such as changes in our business strategy and our internal forecasts. Although we believe the assumptions
and estimates we have made in the past have been reasonable and appropriate, different assumptions and estimates
could materially impact our reported financial results. In 2004, we recorded a pretax impairment charge of
$2.2 million related to certain technology assets. No impairment charges were recorded in 2005 and 2006.

We self-insure significant portions of our workers' compensation and employee medical costs. We estimate
our liability for future payments ender these programs based on historical experience and various assumptions as o
participating employees, health care costs, number of claims and other Factors, including industry trends and
information provided to us by our insurance broker. We also use actuarial estimates with respect 1o workers'
compensation. If the number of claims or the costs associated with those claims were to increase significantly over
our estimates, additional charges to earnings could be necessary 1o cover required payments,

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes and the related taxes payable
and deferred tax assets and liebilities since, in the ordinary course of business, there are transactions and
calculations where the ultimate tax oulcome is uncertain. Additionally, our tax returns are subject to audit by
various domestic and foreign tax authorities that could result in material adjustments or differing interpretations of
the tax laws. Although we believe thal our estimates are reasonable and are based on the best available information
al the lime we prepare the provision, actual results could differ from these estimates resulting in a final tax outcome
that may be materially different from that which is reflected in our consolidated financial statements.

Qur operating leases primarily relate to steres and generally contain remt escalation clauses, rent holidays,
contingent rent provisions and occasionally leasehold incentives. We recognize rent expense for operaling leases on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, which is generally five to ten years based on the initial lease term plus
first renewal option periods that are reasonably assured. The lease terms commence when we take possession with
the right to control use of the leased premises and, for stores, is generally 60 doys prior to the date rent payments
begin. Prior to fiscal 2006, we capitalized rent amounts allocated to the construction period for leased properties as
leasehold improvements. In fiscal 2006, we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Siaff
Pasition (“FSP”} No. FAS 13-1 (“FSP 13-1"), "Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a Construction Period,”
which requires that rental costs associated with ground or building operating leases that are incurred during a
construction period be recognized as rental expense (see Note | of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion regarding FSP 13-1). Deferred rent that results from recognition of rent on a straight-line basis is
included in other liabilities. Landlord incentives received for reimbursement of leasehold improvements are
recorded as deferred rent and amortized as a reduction to rent expense over the term of the lease.




Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the Company’s results of operations expressed as a percentage of net sales for the
periods indicated:

Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006
Netsales . ... e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of goods sold, including buying and distribution costs .. .......... 49.8 48.7 45.6
OCCUPANCY COSIS. ..ottt ittt i i na e ca e na e 11.2 10.9 11.1
GrosS Margin . . ... ..o un ittt ci it ins e e 390 404 433
Selling, general and adminisirative expenses ............ ... .o 314 30.8 31.4
Operaling iNCOME . . .. ... .t it iiie e iian s araraans 7.6 9.6 19
LT L T T 1T+ 312 (0.1) (0.1} {0.5)
TRIEFEST EXPEMSE . o o v v et e et ev oo ettt i 0.4 0.3 0.5
Earnings before income 1axes ... ... .. v v in i 73 94 11.9
Provision for iNCOME (XS .. ... .. ittt v e ee s 2.7 34 4.0
NetBaMINES . . ottt i e e 46% 60% T19%

2006 Compared with 2005

The Company’s net sales increased $157.2 million, or 9.1%, to $1.882 billion for 2006 due mainly to a
$113.8 million increase in clothing product sales, a $17.5 million increase in alieration service revenucs am! a
$23.3 million increase in tuxedo rental revenues. The components of this $157.2 million increase in nel sales arc as
follows: ‘

{ln millions) Amount Atlributed to

$ 433 1.9% and 8.7% increase in comparable sales for US and Canadian stores, respectively, in 2006
compared to 2005.

38.8  Net sales from 35 new stores opened in 2006.
31.7  Impact of 53™ week in 2006.

21.5  Increase from net sales of stores opened tn 2005, relocated stores and expanded stores not
included in comparable sales.

19.3  Increase from alteration and other sales,

(8.9) Closed stores in 2005 and 2006.

11.5  Effect of exchange rate changes.
$157.2  Total

Our Men's Wearhouse comparable store sales (which are calculated by excluding the net sales of a store for any
month of one period if the store was not open throughout the same month of the prior period) increased 3.1%, while
our K&G comparable store sales decreased 1.8%. Our Men's Wearhouse comparable store sales increased ductoa
slight increase in traffic levels and continued growth in our tuxedo rental business. The decrease in K&G
comparable store sales was due mainly lo a decrease in traffic levels. In Canada, comparable store sales increased
8.7% primarily as a result of improvement in the clothing average ticket, increased traffic and continued growth in
our tuxedo rental business. As a percentage of total revenues, combined U.S. and Canadian tuxedo rental revenues
increased from 5.6% in fiscal 2005 10 6.3% in fiscal 2006.

Gross margin increased $118.6 million, or 17.0%. 10 $815.7 million in 2006. As a percentage of sales, gruss
margin increased from 40.4% in 2005 to 43.3% in 2006. This increase in gross margin percentage resulted mainly
from improvements in merchandise margins related to lower product costs and continued growth in our tuxedo
rental business, which carries a significantly higher incremental gross margin impact than our traditional busi-
nesses. This increase in the gross margin percentage was partially offset by an increase in occupancy cost, which is
relatively constant on a per store basis and includes store related rent, common area maintenance, utilities, repairs
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and maintenance, securily, property taxes and depreciation, from 2005 to 2006. On an absolute dollar basis,
occupancy coslts increased by 11.6% from 2005 10 2006 due mainly 1o our increased store count and renewals of
existing lcases a1 higher rates.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A™) expenses increased to $591.8 million in fiscal 2006 from
$531.8 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of $60.0 million or 11.3%. As a percentage of sales, these expenses
increased from 30.8% in 2005 to 31.4% in 2006. The components of this 0.6% net increase in SG&A expensesas a
percentage of net sales are as follows:

% Altributed to

0.1% Increase in store salaries as a percentage of sales from 12.7% in 2005 1o 12.8% in 2006. Store salaries
on an absolute dollar basis increased $22.4 million primarily due to increased commissions associated
with higher sales and increased base salaries.

0.5% Increase in other SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales from 14.6% in 2005 to 15.1% in 2006. On
an absolute dollar basis, other SG&A expenses increased $31.8 million primarily as a result of
continued growth in our tuxedo rental business, increased base salaries and benefits and stock based
compensation recorded in connection with the adoption of SFAS 123R. These increases were offset in
part by the absence in the current year of costs associated with the closure of our R&D casual
clothing/sportswear concept stores incurred in fiscal 2005.

0.6% Total

Interest expense increased from $5.9 million in 2005 to $9.2 million in 2006 while interest income increased
from $3.3 million in 2005 10 $9.8 million in 2006. Weighted average borrowings outstanding increased from
$130.8 million in the prior year to $202.1 million in 2006, and the weighted average interest rate on outstanding
indebtedness remained constant at 3.3%. The increase in weighted average borrowings is due to Canadian term loan
borrowings of US$75.0 million in January 2006 that were used to fund the repatriation of foreign eamings from our
Canadian subsidiaries under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, This increase was offset slightly by our
election 10 redeem our $130 million 3.125% Convertible Senior Notes due 2023 (“Notes™} in the fourth quarter of
2006. For additional information regarding the redemption of our Notes, refer to Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements and the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” discussion herein. The increase in interest income
primarily resulted from increases in our average cash and shori-term investment balances and higher interest rates.

Our effective income tax rate decreased from 36.1% in 2005 to 33.8% in 2006 due primarily to favorable
developments on certain outstanding income tax matters and an increase in the amount of tax exempt interest income
for the current fiscal year. Excluding the adjustments 10 tax reserves associated with the favorable developments on
certain outstanding income tax matters, our effective tax rate would have been 36.1% for fiscal 2006,

These factors resulted in 2006 net earnings of $148.6 million or 7.9% of net sales, compared with 2005 net
earnings of $103.9 million or 6.0% of net sales.

2005 Compared with 2004

The Company’s net sales increased $178.2 million, or 11.5%, to $1.725 billion for 2005 due mainly to a $146.3 million
increase in clothing product sates, a $7.0 million increase in alteration service revenues and an $18.7 million increase in
tuxedo rental revenues. The components of this $178.2 million increase in net sales are as follows:

(In millions) Awmount Attributed to

$108.3  8.4% and 2.7% increase in comparable sales for US and Canadian stores, respectively, in 2005
compared to 2004,

18.8  Net sales from 18 new stores opened in 2005.

26.6  Increase from net sales of stores opened in 2004, relocated stores and expanded stores nol
mcluded in comparable sales.

15.7  Increase from other sales.

(3.1} Closed stores in 2005 and in 2004.

11.3  Effect of exchange ratc changes.
$178.2  Total
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Our U.S. comparable store sales (which are calculated by excluding the nel sales of a store for any month of
one period if the store was not open throughout the same month of the prior period) increased 8.4% due mainly to
increased store traffic levels at our traditional Men's Wearhouse stores and at our K&G stores where the hours of
operation were extended from four days to seven days a week beginning September 1, 2004. Improvement was
experienced in nearly all product categories at both our Men's Wearhouse and K&G stores and in our tuxedo rental
revenues. We have also experienced an improved custorner response at our K&G stores as a result of a comparative
advertising campaign. In Canada, comparable store sales increased 2.7% primarily as a result of improved retail
sales in suits and shirts and continued growth in our tuxedo rental business.

Gross margin increased $94.1 million, or 15.6%, to $697.1 million in 2005. As a percemtage of sales, gross
margin increased from 39.0% in 2004 to 40.4% in 2005. This increase in gross margin percentage resulied mainly
from higher initial mark-ups and from continued growth in our tuxedo rental business, which carries a significantly
higher incremental gross margin impact than our clothing sales. The gross margin percentage was also increased as
occupancy cost, which is relatively constant on a per store basis and includes store related rent, common area
maintenance, utilities, repairs and maintenance, securily, property taxes and depreciation, decreased as a percentage
of sales from 2004 to 2005. However, on an absolute dollar basis, occupancy costs increased by 7.8% from 2004 to
2005 due mainly to higher rent expense from our increased store count and renewals of existing leases at higher
rates and increased depreciation.

Selling. general and administrative (“SG&A") expenses increased to $531.8 million in fiscal 2005 from
$484.9 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of $46.9 million or 9.7%. As a percentage of sales, these expenses
decreased from 31.4% in 2004 to 30.8% in 2005. The components of this 0.6% nct decrease in SG& A expenses as a
percentage of net sales were as follows:

T Attributed to

{0.4%) Decrease in advertising expenses as a percenlage of sales from 3.9% in 2004 10 3.5% in 2005. On an
absolute dollar basis, advertising expense increased $1.1 million.

{0.1%) Decrease in store salarics as a percentage of sales from 12.8% in 2004 to 12.7% in 2005 primarily
due to leveraging of these costs from higher sales. Store salaries on an absolute dollar basis
increased $20.6 million primarily due to increased commissions associated with higher sales and
increased base salaries.

(0.1%) Decrease in other SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales from 14.7% in 2004 to 14.6% in 2005,
primarily due to leveraging fixed general and administrative costs from higher sales. On an absolute
dollar basis, other SG&A expenses increased $25.2 million primarily as a result of continued growth
in our tuxedo rental business and costs associated with the closure of our six R&D casual
clothing/sportswear concept stores, offset in part by the absence in the current year of a $2.2 million
asset impairment charge incurred in fiscal 2004.

(0.6%) Total

Interest expense remained constant at $5.9 million in 2005 while interest income increased from $1.5 million
in 2004 to $3.3 million in 2005. Weighted average borrowings outstanding decreased slightly from $130.9 million
in the prior year to $130.8 million in 2005, and the weighted average interest rate on outstanding indebtedness
decreased from 3.4% to 3.3%. The increase in interest income primarily relates to increases in our average cash and
short-lerm investment balances and in higher interest rates. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements and *Liquidity and Capital Resources” discussion herein,

Qur effective income tax rate decreased from 37.3% in 2004 to 36.1% in 2005 due primarily 10 (i) 2 $2.3 million
reduction in previously recorded tax accruals due to developments associated with certain tax audits, (ii) a
$2.0 million reduction in previously recorded tax accruals associated with favorable developments on certain
outstanding income tax matters and (iii) an increase in the amount of tax exempt interest income for the current
fiscal year. These reductions were partially offset by additional tax expenses of $3.9 million resuliing from the
repatriation of foreign earnings from our Canadian subsidiaries in the founth quarter of 2005 under the provisions of
the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. Refer to Note 4 of Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information regarding our income tax provision and the repatriation of foreign earnings.
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These factors resulied in 2005 net earnings of $103.9 million or 6.0% of net sales, compared with 2004 net
earnings of $71.4 million or 4.6% of net sales.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On June 13, 2005, we effected a three-for-two stock split by paying a 50% stock dividend to shareholders of
record as of May 31, 2005.

On December 21, 2005, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”)
with a group of banks to amend and restate our revolving credit facility. On February 2, 2007, we entered into an
Agreement and Amendment to the Credit Agreement effective as of Januvary 31, 2007 (the “Amendment™). The
Amendment (i) extends the maturity date of the revolving credit facility under the Credit Agreement to February 11,
2012 and {ii) increases the tolal senior secured revolving credit facility under the Credit Agreement from $100.0 mil-
lion to $200.0 million, which can be expanded to $250.0 million upon additional lender commitments. The Credit
Agreement also provided our Canadian subsidiaries with a senior secured term loan used to fund the repatriation of
US$74.7 million of Canadian earnings in January 2006 under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. The Canadian
term loan matures on February 10, 2011. The Credit Agreement is secured by the stock of certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Credit Agreement has several borrowing and interest rate options including the following indices:
(i} an alternate base rate {equal to the greater of the prime rate or the federal funds rate plus 0.5%) or (i) LIBO rate or
(iii) CDO rate. Advances under the Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate per annum using the applicable indices
plus a varying interest rate margin up to 1.125%. The Credit Agreement also provides for fees applicable (o unused
commitments ranging from 0.100% to 0.175%. The effective interest rate for the Canadian term Joan was 5.0% at
February 3, 2007. As of February 3, 2007, there were no borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility and
there was US$73.0 million outstanding under the Canadian term loan.

The Credit Agreement contains certain restrictive and financial covenants, including the requirement to
maintain certain financtal ratios. The restrictive provisions in the Credit Agreement have been modified to afford us
with greater operating flexibility than was provided for in our previous facility and to reflect an overall covenant
structure that is generally representative of a commercial loan made to an investment-grade company. Our debt,
however, is not rated, and we have not sought, and are not seeking, a rating of our debt. We were in compliance with
the covenants in the Credit Agreement as of February 3, 2007.

On October 21, 2003, we issued $130.0 million of 3.125% Conventible Senior Notes due 2023 (“Notes™) in a
private placement. Interest on the Notes was payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15 of each year,
beginning on Apnil 15, 2004, The Notes were scheduled to mature on October 15, 2023. However, we had the right
to redeem the Notes between Qctober 20, 2006 and October 19, 2008 if the price of our common stock reached
certain levels.

During centain periods, the Notes were convertible by holders into shares of our commeon stock at a conversion
rate of 35.1309 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of Notes, which was equivalent to a conversion
price of $28.47 per share of common stock (subject to adjustment in certain events), under the following
circumstances: (1) if the closing sale price of our common stock issuable upon conversion exceeded 120% of
the conversion price under specified conditions; (2) if we called the Notes for redemption; or (3) vpon the
occurrence of specified corporate transactions. Upon conversion of the Notes, in lieu of delivering common stock
we could, at our election, deliver cash or a2 combination of cash and common stock, However, on January 28, 2005,
we entered into a supplemental indenture relating to the Notes and irrevocably elected 1o setile the principal amount
at issuance of such Notes in 100% cash when they become convertible and are surrendered by the holders thereof.
The Notes were general senior unsecured obligations, ranking on parity in right of payment with all our existing and
future unsecured senior indebtedness and our other general unsecured obligations, and senior in right of payment
with all our future subordinated indebtedness. The Notes were effectively subordinated to all of our senior secured
indebtedness and all indebiedness and liabilities of our subsidiaries.

On November 16, 2006, we issued a press release announcing that, as a result of the closing sale price of the
Company's common stock exceeding 140% of the conversion price for the requisite number of days during the
requisite period, we had elected 1o redeem the full $130.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Notes. Holders
of the Notes had the right to convert their notes at any time prior to two business days immediately preceding the
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redemption date. As indicated above, we had irrevocably elected to settle the principal amount at issuance of the
Notes in cash when and if surrendered for conversion. Under the terms governing the Notes, holders of approx-
imately $127.0 million principal amount of the Notes exercised their conversion right in lieu of having their notes
redeemed and we exercised our right to pay cash for the principal amount of the Notes converted in lieu of issuing
common stock. The market value of the common stock 1o be issued upon conversion that exceeded the principal
amount was paid by delivering common stock. As a result, we paid approximately $127.0 million in cash and issued
1,222,364 shares of the Company's common stock pursuant to the requesied conversions. The remaining
$3.0 million principal amount of the Notes was redeemed on December 15, 2006 with such payment and accrued
and unpaid interest being made in cash. Notes converied into commaon stock prior to the redemption date were not
entitled 1o receive accrued and unpaid interest. In connection with the conversion and redemption of the Notes, we
paid approximately $130.1 million in cash, issued 1,222,364 shares of the Company’s common stock and wrote-off
approximately $1.3 million of unamortized deferred financing costs.

We utilize letiers of credit primarily for inventory purchases. At February 3, 2007, letters of credit totaling
approximately $19.0 million were issued and outstanding.

A quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per share was paid for each of the first quarter ended April 29, 2006, th:
second quarter ended July 29, 2006, the third quaner ended October 28, 2006 and the fourth quarter ended
February 3, 2007. Cash dividends paid were approximately $10.8 million for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007.
In January 2007, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per share of our common stock
payable on March 30, 2007 1o shareholders of record on March 20, 2007. The dividend payout is approximately
$2.7 million and is included in accrued expenses as of February 3, 2007,

In March 2007, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.06 per share payable on July 6,
2007 to shareholders of record al the close of business on June 27, 2007,

On November 16, 2006, we entered into a definitive stock purchase agreement with Federated Depariment
Stores, Inc. and David’'s Bridal, Inc. to acquire After Hours Formalwear, Inc. (“After Hours”) for a cash
consideration of $100.0 million, subject to certain adjustments. After Hours is the largest men’s formalwear
chain in the United States and operates 507 stores in 35 states under After Hours Formalwear and Mr. Tux store
fronts. Afier Hours has an exclusive relationship with David's Bridal, Inc., the nation’s largest bridal retailer with
269 stores and an online offering. That exclusivity will remain effective after the acquisition and will be exiended to
Men’s Wearhouse and Moores store brands. The acquisition is conditioned upon, among other things, the
termination or expiration of the waiting period under the Ham-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of
1976 and other customary closing conditions. On March 23, 2007, we announced that the Federal Trade Commision
had terminated its review and that we expect to close the acquisition on or before April 8, 2007.

Our primary sources of working capital are cash flow from operations and, if necessary, borrowings under the
Credit Agreement. We had working capital of $388.2 million, $491.5 million and $454.7 million at the end of 2004,
2005 and 2006, respectively. Historically, our working capital has been at its lowest level in January and February,
and has increased through November as inventory buildup occurs in preparation for the fourth quarter selling
season, The $36.8 million decrease in working capital at February 3, 2007 compared to January 28, 2006 resulted
from the following:

(In millions) Amount Attributed to

$(83.3)  Decrease in cash and short-term investments, dve primarily 1o the redemption of our
3.125% Convertible Senior Notes due 2023, purchases of treasury stock and cash dividends paid.

33.8  Increase in inventories due 1o square footage growth of 8.9%.

237 Decrease in accounts payable due to amount and timing of 2006 payables as compared to the
same items for 2003,

(5.6) Increase in accrued expenses due to increased accruals for payrotl, medical claims, vacation,
unredeemed gift certificates and contributions to our employee stock option plan.

(5.4) Other items.
$(36.8) Total
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Our operating activities provided net cash of $130.0 million in 2004, $154.6 miilion in 2005 and $160.8 million
in 2006 mainly because cash provided by net eamnings, as adjusted for non-cash charges and, in 2004, increases in
payables and accrued expenses more than offset cash used for increases in inventories, tuxedo rental product and, in
2006, decreases in payables and zccrued expenses. Inventories increased in each of the years due mainly to
increased selling square footage and increased sales. The increase in tuxedo rental product in each of the years is due
to purchases to support the continued growth in our tuxedo rental business. In 2004, the increase in accounts payable
and accrued expenses was due to higher bonuses earned as a result of increased sales, the expansion of our Men's
Wearhouse customer loyalty program and increased customer purchases of gift cards. In 2006, the decrease in
accounts payable and accrued expenses was due mainly to the timing of vendor payments.

Our investing activities used net cash of $36.9 million and $129.4 million in 2004 and 2005, respectively. due
mainly to capital expenditures of 385.4 million and $66.5 million in 2004 and 2005, respectively, and in 2005 net
purchases of short-term investments of $62.8 million. In 2006, our investing activities used net cash of $11.6 million
due mainly to capital expenditures of $72.9 million, offset by net proceeds of short-term investments of
$62.8 million. Short-term investments consist of auction rate securities which represent funds available for current
operations. These securilies have stated maturities beyond three months but are priced and traded as short-term
instruments due to the liquidity provided through the interest rate mechanism of 7 to 35 days. As of February 3,
2007, we held no short-term investments. Our capital expenditures relate to costs incurred for siores opened,
remodeled or relocated during the year or under construction at the end of the year, distribution facility additions
and infrastructure technology investments as detailed below. In 2004, our cash used by investing activities also
included $11.0 million for net assets acquired for 11 retail dry cleaning and laundry facilitics operating in the
Houston, Texas area.

The following table details our capital expenditures (in millions):
2004 2005 2006

New SIore CONSINICLON . . ... v ot i e i e ie e ierereeaenns $143 3134  $190
Relocation and remodeling of existing stores. . ..................... 18.9 30.3 29.2
Information technology . . ... .. .. v ittt 10.7 10.6 8.8
Distribution facilities . .. ... ... .. .. i e e 305 11.1 13.5
L 1 11.0 1.1 2.4

Total ..o P $854 §66.5 $72.9

Property additions relating to new retail apparel stores include stores in various stages of completion at the end
of the fiscal year (eight storcs at the end of 2004, 12 stores at the end of 2005 and one store a1 the end of 2006). In
addition, our expendilures for the relocation and remodeling of existing retail apparel stores continue to increase as
we update our store base, Capital expenditures in 2004 included approximately $10.0 million for the centralization
in Houston, Texas of our warehouse and distribution program for our K&G stores and approximately $13.0 million
related to our Canadian operations for the purchase of a new tuxedo distribution center in Toronte, Ontario and for
the construction of a new warehouse and distribution center in Montreal, Quebcec.

We used net cash in financing activities of $1.6 million in 2004 due mainly to purchases of treasury stock offset
by proceeds from the issuance of our common stock for options exercised. In September 2003, the Board of
Directors authorized a program for the repurchase of up to $100.0 million of our common stock in the open market
or in private transactions, As of January 29, 2005, we had repurchased under the September 2003 program
2,108,100 shares at a cost of $42.4 million in private transactions and 3,054,600 shares at a cost of $51.4 million in
open market transactions, for a total of 5,162,700 shares at un average price per share of $18.17. During fiscal 2004,
a total of 484,500 shares at a cost of $8.7 million were repurchased under this program at an average price per share
of $17.96. In June 2004, the Board of Directors authorized a program for the repurchase of up to $50.0 million of our
common stock in the open market or in private transactions. This authorization superceded the approximately
$6.2 million we had remaining under the September 2003 authorization. As of January 29, 2005, a total of
149,100 shares at a cost of $2.5 million were repurchased in open market transactions under this program at an
average price per share of $16.66, Under all authorized programs during fiscal 2004, we repurchased 633,600 shares
of our common stock at a cost of $11.2 million, with an average repurchase price of $17.65 per share. As of
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January 28, 2006, we had repurchased under the June 2004 program 1,652,850 shares at a cost of $43.0 million in
open market transactions at an average price per share of $26.00.

In 2005, net cash provided by financing activites was $5.1 million due mainly to borrowings under our Credit
Agreement used 10 fund the repatriation of $US74.7 million of foreign eamings from our Canadian subsidiaries and
proceeds from the issuance of our commeon stock for options exercised, offset by purchases of treasury stock. In
May 2005, the Board of Directors approved a replenishment of our share repurchase program to $50.0 million by
authorizing $43.0 million to be added to the remaining $7.0 million under the June 2004 authorization program. A3
of January 28, 2006, a total of 1,696,000 shares at a cost of $49.8 million were repurchased in open market
transactions under this program at an average price per share of $29.36. On January 25, 2006, the Board of Directors
authorized a new $100.0 million share repurchase program of our common stock. This authorization superceded the
approximately $0.2 million we had remaining under the May 2005 authorization. No shares were repurchased under
this program as of January 28, 2006. During 2005, a total ‘of 3,199,750 shares at a cost of $90.3 million werc
repurchased in open market transactions under all authorized stock repurchase programs at an average price
per share of $28.21.

In 2006, our financing activities used net cash of $168.2 million due mainly to redemption of our 3.125% Con-
vertible Senior Notes due 2023, purchases of treasury stock and cash dividends paid, offset partiaily by proceeds
from the issuance of our common stock in connection with the exercise of stock options. During 2006, a total of
1,134,000 shares at a cost of $40.3 million were repurchased in open market transaction under the January 2006
authorization at an average price per share of $35.53. The remaining balance available under the January 2006
authorization at February 3, 2007 is $59.7 million.

The following table summarizes our share repurchases over the last three fiscal years:

2004 2005 2006
Shares repurchased (in thousands) ......................... 6336  3,1998 1,134.0
Total costs (inmillionsy. . ...t $11.2 $ %3 § 403
Average price pershare . .. ... ... ... i e $1765 % 2821 § 3553

In addition to funding the acquisition of After Hours Formalwear, Inc. as discussed above, our primary cash
requirements are to finance working capital increases as well as to fund capital expenditure requirements which are
anticipated to be approximately $65.0 million for 2007. This amount includes the anticipated costs of opening
approximately 21 new Men's Wearhouse stores and 15 new K&G stores in 2007 at an expected average cost per
store of approximately $0.4 million (excluding telecommunications and point-of-sate equipment and inventory)
and the cost of our new office and data center facitities. The balance of the capital expenditures for 2007 will be used
for telecommunications, point-of-sale and other computer equipment and systems, store relocations, remodeling
and expansion and investment in complimentary services and concepts. The Company anticipates that each of the
21 new Men’s Wearhouse stores and each of the 15 new K&G stores will require, on average, an initial inventory
costing approximately $0.4 million and $1.5 million, respectively (subject to the seasonal palterns that affect
inventory at all stores), which will be funded by our revolving credit facility. trade credit and cash from operations.
The actual amount of future capital expenditures and inventory purchases will depend in part on the number of new
stores opened and the terms on which new stores are leased. Additionally, the continuing consolidation of the men’s
tailored clothing industry may present us with apportunities to acquire re1ail chains significantly larger than our past
acquisitions. Any such acquisitions may be undentaken as an alternative to opening new stores. We may use cash on
hand, together with cash flow from operations, borrowings under our revolving credit facility and issuances of
equily securities, to take advantage of significant acquisition opportunilies.

On August 16, 2004, we purchased a store (land and building, which we had been leasing) in Dallas, Texas for
$1.0 million from 8239 Preston Road. Inc., a Texas corporation of which George Zimmer, Chairman of the Board
and CEO of the Company, James E. Zimmer, Senior Vice President-Merchandising of the Company, and Richard
Goldman, a former officer and director of the Company, each owned 20% of the outstanding common stock, and
Laurie Zimmer, sister of George and James E. Zimmer, owned 40% of the outstanding common stock,

On August 20, 2004, we purchased a 1980 Gulfstream 1 aircraft from Regal Aviation L.L.C. (“Regal
Aviation") for $5.0 million, Regal Aviation operates a private air charter service and is a limited liability company of
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which George Zimmer owns 99%. In addition, on August 20, 2004, we entered into a leasing arrangement with
Regal Aviation under which Regal Aviation operates, manages and markets the aircraft as well as provides the
appropriate flight personnel and services. The aircraft is utilized to provide air transportation from time to time for
George Zimmer and is leased to third parties for charter. On August 31, 2006, Regal Aviation sold substantially all
of its assets to an unrelated third party who now provides to us those services previously provided by Regal
Aviation.

On October 15, 2004, we purchased a warehouse facility located in Houston, Texas (the “Facility”) from Zig Zag
for $0.7 million. Zig Zag is a Texas joint venture, in which Richard E. Goldman, George Zimmer and James E. Zimmer
were the sole and equal joint venturers. Prior to the purchase of the Facility, we leased the Facility from Zig Zag.

Based on the resulis of appraisals and review of the terms of other Regal Aviation leasing arrangements with
unrelated third parties, we betieve that the terms of the aircraft purchase and teasing agreements and the terms of the
store purchase and the Facility purchase were comparable to what would have been available to us from unaffiliated
third parties at the time such agreements were entered into.

We anticipate that our existing cash and cash flow from operations, supplemented by borrowings under our
Credit Agreement, will be sufficient 1o fund the Afier Hours Formalwear, Inc. acquisition, planned store openings,
other capital expenditures and operating cash requirements for at least the next |2 months.

As substantially all of our cash is held by three financial institutions, we are exposed to risk of loss in the event
of failure of any of these parties. However, due to the creditworthiness of these three financial institutions, we
anticipate full performance and access to our deposits and liquid investments.

In connection with our direct sourcing program, we may enter into purchase commitments that are denom-
inated in a foreign currency (primarily the Euro), We generally enter into forward exchange contracts to reduce the
risk of currency fluctuations related 1o such commitments, We may also be exposed to market risk as a result of
changes in foreign exchange rates. This market risk should be substantially offset by changes in the valuation of the
underlying transactions.

Contractual Obligations

As of February 3, 2007, the Company is obligated to make cash payments in connection with its long-term
debt, noncancelable capital and operating leases and other contractual obligations in the amounts listed below. In
addition, we utilize letters of credil primarily for inventory purchases. At February 3, 2007, letters of credit totaling
approximately $19.0 million were issued and outstanding.

Payments Duc by Period

<1 1-3 35 >5
(In millions) Total Year Years Years Years
Contractual obligations
Long-term debt™ . ... ... ... .......... $730 $§ — § — S$730 $ —
Capital lease obligations™ . .............. 45 1.1 1.7 1.1 0.6
Operating lease base remals®. .. ....... ... 5902 1139 1983 1343 (437
Other contractual obligations® .. .......... 3.1 31.1 — — —
Total coniraciual obligations. .. ........... $698.8 $146.1 $200.0 $2084 $144.3

{n) Long-term debt includes our Canadian term loan of US$73.0 million due in February 2011, The Canadian lerm loan bears interest at
CDOR plus an applicable murgin, This borrowing is further described in Note 1 and Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
The table assumes our long-termn debt is held to maturity,

(b) We leasc retail business locations, office and warchouse facilities, copicr equipment and automotive equipment under various nencan-
celable capital and operating leascs. Leases on retail business locations specify minimum base rentals plus commen area maintenance
charges and possible additiona) rentals based upon percentages of sales. Most of the retail business location leases provide for renewal
options o1 rotcs specified in the leases, Our future lease obligations would change if we exercised these renewal options and if we entered
into zddilional lease agreements. See Note {0 of Noies o Consoliduted Financial Statements for more information.

{c) Other contractual obligations consisi primarily of manufacturing contracts to purchase inventory.
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In March 2007, we entered into a three year transportation agreement, commencing April 2, 2007, with Ryder
[niegrated Logistics, Inc., to execute shipments from vendors to cur distribution facilities in Houston, Texas, and
from the distribution facilities to regional transportation hubs or stores within a regional service area. The
transportation agreement terminated leasing agreements we had in place as of the end of fiscal 2006 for our long-
haul tractors and trailers. As a result, our total future lease commiiments will be reduced by approximately
$0.3 million for operating leases and approximately $3.1 million for capital lease obligations. The transportation
agreement will increase our other contractual obligations by approximately $1.5 million in fiscal 2007, $1.4 million
in fiscal 2008, $1.2 million in fiscal 2009 and $0.2 million in fiscal 2010,

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than the noncancelable operating leases, other contractual obligations and letters of credit discussed
above, the Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements thal are material to its financial position ot
results of operations.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48"). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncenainty in income
taxes recognized in a Company's financial statements in accordance with FASB No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement atiribute for a tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. Differences between the amounts recognized in the
statements of financial position prior to the adoption of FIN 48 and the amounts reported after adoption are to be
accounted for as an adjustment 1o the beginning balance of retained earings. FIN 48 is effective as of the beginning
of fiscal years that begin after December 15, 2006. We will adopt FIN 48 in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. We are
currenily evaluating the impact that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on our financial position, results of operations
and cash flows.

In June 2006, the EITF ratified its conclusion on EITF Issue No. 06-02 “Accounting for Sabbatical Leave an
Other Similar Benefits Pursuant to FASB Statement No. 43,” “Accounting for Compensated Absences” (“EITF
06-02"). EITF 06-02 requires that compensation expense associated with a sabbatical leave, or other similar benefit
arrangement, be accrued over the requisite service period during which an employee eamns the benefit. EITF 06-02
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and should be recognized as either a change in
accounting principle through a cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the year of
adoption or a change in accounting principle through retrospective application to all prior periods. We will adopt
ETTF 06-02 in the first quarter of fiscal 2007, We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of EITF 06-02
will have on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In June 2006, the EITF ratified its conclusion on EITF Ne. 06-03, “How Taxes Collected From Customers and
Remitied to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement {That Is, Gross versus Net
Presentation),” (“EITF 06-03™. EITF 06-03 concluded that the presentation of taxes assessed by a governmental
authority that is directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer such as sales,
use, value added and certain excise taxes is an accounting policy decision that should be disclosed in a Company’s
financial statements. Additionally, companies that record such 1axes on a gross basis should disclose the amounts of
those taxes in interim and annual financial statements for each period for which an income statement is presented if
those amounts are significant. EITF 06-03 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The
adoption of EITF 06-03 will have no effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157"). This
statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for using fair value 1o measure assets and liabilities, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The statement applies whenever other statements require or
permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November |5, 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on our financial
position, results of operations and cash flows.
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In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB") No. 108, “Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements When Quantifying Misstaicments in Current Year Financial Statements™ (“SAB 108"),
which provides interpretive guidance regarding the consideration given to prior year misstatements when deter-
mining maleriality in current year financial statements. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after
November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on our financial position, resulis
of operations and cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Vatue Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities-Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115, (“SFAS 1597). SFAS 159 provides companies
with an option 10 measure certain financial instruments and other items at fair value with changes in fair value
reported in earnings, SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, We are currently
evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS 159 will have on our financial position, results of operations and
cash flows.

Inflation

The impact of inflation on the Company has been minimal.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are subject to exposure from fluctuations in U.S. dollar/Euro exchange rates. As further described in Note 8
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources”, we utilize foreign currency forward
exchange contracts to limit exposure to changes in currency exchange rates. At February 3, 2007, we had no
contracts outstanding. At January 28, 2006, we had three contracts maturing in varying increments to purchase an
aggregate notional amount of $1.2 million in foreign currency, maturing at various dates through April 2006.
Unrealized pretax losses on these forward contracts 1otaled approximately $32 thousand at January 28, 2006.

Moores conducts its business in Canadian dollars. The exchange rate between Canadian dollars and
U.S. doltars has fluctuated over the last ten years. If the value of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar
weakens, then the revenues and eamings of our Canadian operations will be reduced when they are translated 1o
U.S. dollars. Also, the value of our Canadian net assets in U.S. dollars may decline.

We are also subject to market risk from our Canadian term loan of U$$73.0 million at February 3, 2007, which
bears interest at CDOR plus an applicable margin (see Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). An
increase in market interest rates would increase our interest expense and our cash requirements for interest
payments. For example, an average increase of 0.5% in the variable interest rate would increase our interest expense
and payments by approximately $0.4 million.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Our internal control over
financizl reporting is a process designed under the supervision of our principal executive and principal financial
officers, and effected by our board of directors, management and other personnel, 1o provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or delect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of our
most recent fiscal year. In making this assessment, our managemeni used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, Based on
such assessment, management concluded that, as of February 3, 2007, our internal control over financial reporting is
effective based on those criteria,

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of February 3,
2007 has been audited by Deloite & Touche LLP, the independem registered public accounting firm that audited
our consolidated financial statements included in this report, as stated in their report which appears on page 31 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc.
Houston, Texas

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying “Management's Report on [nternal
Control Over Financial Reponing”, that The Men's Wearhouse, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company™) maintained
effective internal control over financial reporiing as of February 3, 2007, based on criteria established in Inrernal
Conirol — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Com-
mission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reponing and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is
10 express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repornting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial siatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intenal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 1o the maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detaii,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Becausc of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the intemal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteriz established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Comminee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on the criteria established in nternal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended
February 3, 2007 of the Company and our report dated April 2, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements and financial statement schedule.

fs/ Deroirte & Toucse LLP

Houston, Texas
April 2, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
The Men's Wearhouse, Inc.
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. and subsid-
iaries (the “Company"”) as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of
earnings, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended February 3, 2007. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index ot Item 15.
These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financia) stalements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Men's Wearhouse and subsidiaries as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 3, 2007, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial siatements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company's internal contro! over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007,
based on the criteria established in Jnternal Controf — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated April 2, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting and an unqualificd opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internat control over financial
reporting.

Is/  Devorrre & ToucHe LLP

Houston, Texas
April 2, 2007

32




THE MEN'S WEARHOUSE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In thousands, except shares)

January 28, February 3,
2006 2007

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cashand cash equivalents. . .. ... .. .. i it i e e $ 200226 $ 179.694
Short-term INVESIINENIS . . .. .. .ttt ot e et i e a e e 62,775 —
Accounts receivable, net . .. ... L L. e e s 16,837 17,018
IV ENIOmIES . . o i e e 416,603 448,586
OUhEr CUITENT B5SBLE & v v vt ettt e ettt et tte e 33.171 35,531
Total CUTENT A5SE1S . . . o\ttt e ie e bt e im e e e e b s 729.612 680.829
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, AT COST: |
I 9.122 9,093
BUlIngS . ..ot e e 54,515 63,477
Leasehold improvements. . . ... ... .t ie s it it ia e 244,300 264,276
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment . ... .. ... . it e 304,020 332,494
611,957 669,340
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . .......... ... ... ....... (342.371) (379,700)
Net property and eqUIPMENt . ... ... ...t ittt iiian s 269.586 289,640
TUXEDO RENTAL PRODUCT, net. .. ...ttt a e iiaiinnenns 52,561 57,565
GOODWILL ... i e e e e s 57.601 56,867
OTHER ASSETS, Del. . . it et ettt ittt i e 13.914 12,051
10 1 7 $1,123,274 $1,096,952
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable . . ... e e $ 125064 3 111,213
ACCIUE EXPENSES . . ..t it iii st et it 91,935 95,249
Income taxas payable . ... ... . e e e 21,086 19,676
Total current labilities ... .. ... ... .. ... e 238,085 226,138
LONG-TERM DEBT . ... . it e e ees 205,251 72,967
DEFERRED TAXES AND OTHER LIABILITIES . ...... e 52.405 44,075
Total Habilities ... ...t i i e 495,741 343,180
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 3 and Note 10)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, 3.01 par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued . . —_ —
Common stock, $.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 67,237,824 and
69,154,241 shares issued . .. ... ... i 671 691
Capital inexcess of par. . ... ... e e 255,214 286,120
Retained eamings . . . .. ... .t e i e s 614,680 752,361
Accumulated other comprehensive income. ... .. ... . i 26.878 23.496
TOlal, © o et e 897,443 1,062,668
Treasury stack, 14,169,241 and 15,234,677 shares atcost. . ................ (269,910} (308.896)
Total shareholders’ equity . . ... .. .. i i i e s 627,533 753,772
B 91 17 O $£1.123.274  $1.096,952

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of these consolidated financial staiements.
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THE MEN'S WEARHOUSE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
For the Years Ended
January 29, 2005, January 28, 2006 and February 3, 2007
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Fisca! Year
2004 2005 2006

Net sales:

Clothing product. . .. ... .ot e $1.381,241  $1,527,526  $1.641,300

Tuxedo rental, alteration and other services .. ... ... ...... 165,438 197,372 240,764

Total net sales. . . ... . e 1,546,679 1,724,898 1,882,064

Cost of sales:

Clothing product, including buying and distribution costs. ... ... 685,412 737.149 742,769

Tuxedo rental, alteration and other services .. ............... 84.660 103,527 114,779

OCCUPANCY COSIS . . . v ottt tin et ina e 173,603 187,087 208,811

Totalcostofsales . .. ... ... . .. . i 943.675 1,027,763 1,066,359

Gross MAaTBin . ...ttt it et rtacar e e 603,004 697.135 815,705
Selling, general and administrative expenses .. ................ 484,916 531,839 591,767
Operating iNCOME . . . .. v\ttt e e ia e e eacnenranes 118,088 169,296 223938
INterest IMCOME. . ..o ittt e ettt ieeneraennnnannaerss {1,526) (3.280) (9,786)
INEEresl EXPRNSE . . .t v ittt it c e e 5,899 5.888 9216
Earnings before income taxes . ............coiiiniiiinnen 113,715 162,688 224,508
Provision for inCome taxes . ... ..... ...ttt iinernnnnnns 42,359 58,785 75,933
N AT S . . . o vttt bt e e e $ 71,356 5 103903 $ 148,575
Net earnings per share:

BaSiC . i e e 3 .32 § 193 § 2.80

Diluled. . ... . e e e 3 129 § 1.88 % 2.71
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic ... e e e e 54.044 53,753 33,111

Diluted. . .. i i e e 55,220 55,365 54,749

The accompanying noles are an integral pan of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE MEN'S WEARHOUSE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended
January 29, 2005, January 28, 2006 and February 3, 2007
(In thousands, except shares)

Accomuotated
Capital Other
Common in Excess Retained Comprehensive  Treasury
Stock of Par  Eamings Incorme Stock Totad
BALANCE —January 31,2004 . . .. .........c..¢c.0vutn $431 5203636 $442,074 $10.357 ${170,706) $487.792
Comprehensive income:

Neteamings . .....c.0iiiiiiiin it rancasas - — 71,356 —-— — 71,356

Translation sdjustment . . ... ..ot e —_ _ —_ 7371 - 731

Change in derivative fairvalue. . . .. ............... —_ —_ —_ (251) —_ (251)

Total comprehensiveincome. .. ... .. 78,476
Common stock issued to stock discount plan - 73,817 shares. . — 1,120 —_ —_ —_ 1120
Common stock issued upon excrcise of stock oplions —

TH3M2shares .. ... s 3 9.751 _ — —_ 9,756
Tax benefit related to stock-based plans. .. ... .......... — 1.768 — — - 1,768
Amortization of deferred compensation. . .. ............ — 122 — _ _ 122
Treasury stock issued to profit sharing plan — 65,616 shares . . - (70) - — 1.070 1,000
Treasury stock purchased — 633,600 Shares. . . . ... ... ... = — — — (11.186) (11.186)

BALANCE —January 29,2005 .. ... ... oo nnnn s on 436 218,327 513430 17477 (180.822) 568.848
Comprchensive income:

Netearmings . .......coiiiiinenennernnn. — — 103501 — — 103,903

Translation adjustment . . .. ..o ianr e rnaaenns —_ - — 9,826 - 9.826

Change in derivative fairvalue, .. ... ... ... .. ... —_ — — (425) — (425)

Total comprehensive income. . . . ... ... ..., ... ., 113,304
Stock dividend —50% ... ..., ... ..o 223 (223) — — — —
Cash dividends declared —$0.05 pershare .. ........... - — (2,653) - — (2,653)
Common stock issued to stock discount plan — 65,596 shares. . — 1427 — - - 1427
Common stock issucd upon exercise of stock oplions —

166TATTshares . .. ..o ol it s 12 22823 -— —_ — 22835
Tox benefit related (o stock-based plans. .. ............. - 9.646 —_ - — 9.646
Amortization of deferred compensation. . . ............. _ 2.906 —_ _ — 2,906
Treasury stock issued 10 profit sharing plan — 67,628 shares . . -_ 308 - — 1,192 1.500
Treasury stock purchased — 3,199,750 Shares ., ......... - — - - (90.280) _(90,280)

BALANCE —Junuary 28,2006 . . ... ... v viinn v e 6 255.214 614,580 26.878 (269910) 627,533
Comprehensive income:

Neteamings .. ... ... uiuuiiriannonnnninsnnes — — 148575 — — 148575

Translation adjustment . . ........... ... ..co.u.0, _— — — {3.401) —_ (3.401)

Change in defivative fuirvalue. . ... ............... —_ — — 19 — 19

Towal comprehensive income. . ... .. ... L. L, 145,193
Cash dividends paid —$0.20pershare . . . .. ..... . ... .. — — (8.177 - — (8,177
Cash dividends declared —$005 pershare ... ...... ..., - - (v A 1)) - — @7
Stock-based cOMPENsAlon . . ... v. i i —_ 6.965 —_ —_ — 6.963
Conversion of debt 10 common stock — 1,222,364 shares . . . . 12 {12) _— — — —
Common stock issued to stock discount plan — 62,543 shares, . 1 1,728 — — — 1.729
Common stock issued upon exercise of stock options —

SP689shares .. ... L. e [ 9,088 - — — 9,094
Common stock issued upon vesting of restricted stock and

deferred stock units — 5782t shares. . . ... . ..., ..., I n —_ — — —
Tax payments reloted to vested deferred stock units . . . ... .. -_ (677) —_ — —_ {677)
Tax benefit related to stock-based plans, . . ... ..., ..., —_ 4,800 — — — 4,800
Tax benefit related 1o conversion of debt to comman stock . . . — 8318 —_ - - 8318
Treasury stock issued lo profit sharing plan — 68,564 shares . . - 697 - _ 1.303 2.000
Treasury stock purchased — F 134,000 shares. .. .. .... ... = — — — (40,289) (40.289)

BALANCE —February 3,2007 . . ... ......coovvviinnn $691  $286.120 8752361 $23.49%6 $(308.896) $753.772

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE MEN’S WEARHOUSE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended
January 29, 2008, January 28, 2006 and February 3, 2007
- (In thousands)

Fiscal Yeor
2004 2008 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NEtCamMINES . ..ottt i in sttt it ar i a st sas et S 71356 $ 103903 § 148575
Adjustmenls to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Deprecialion and 4mortiZation . . .. ... ..ottt it s 53319 61,874 61,387
Tuxedo rental product MOMIZAON . . . . . .. v ier et s e st n e eas 8.863 15,341 16858
Loss on disposition O as8ets . . . . it i e e e e — —_ 1,363
Loss on impaimmenl of @ssEls. . . .. ...t ti it i e s 2,169 - -
Write-off of deferred financing costs . ... ... ... . oo - - 1.263
Defermed fenl eXPemse. . . . o e e e (1,495} (2,672) 2021
S10ck-based COmMPERSatiON . . . o .ttt i e e e s 122 2,906 6,965
Deferred tax provision (benefit} . .. . .. .. ... . e 5222 2983 (1.470)
Increase in aceounts meceivable . .. .. .. .t e e e e e (1,116} 209 223
THCTEase T IIVENMIOTIES « & v v o v v b v ettt s ot v ot e e nans sna e a e an s annan {13,709) (5,994) (33.844)
Increase in tuxedo rental PrOdUCt . . o v o vyt e e e e e (19.834)  (30,555)  (22.346)
(Increase) decrease in OMhEr BSSEIS . . o . . v i vt a e i m i c et e 2911 606 (3.374)
Increase (decrease) in sccounts payoble and accrued expenses. . .. .. ..ol 28,060 (725) (18,112)
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable. . .. ... L. ... i e e e (903) 6987 448
Increase in other labilities . . . ... ... .. L e e 836 116 1,281
Net cash provided by operating activilies . . ... ... i iminin i iiiae s 128.979 154,561 160,794
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expendilUlES . . .. ..ot i e e e e (85.,392) {66,499} (72,904}
Netassetsacquired . . . .. ittt i i e et e (11,000) —_ —_
Purchases of available-for-sale investMEnLS . . .. .. oottt tii e —  (106.850) (279.120)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investments. . . . . ..., .. .. . ... L ... —_ 44,075 341895
Investment in trademarks, trudenzmes and other OSSBS. . . . ... v i ve i e e ai e (556) (141) {1.506)
Net cash used in javesting activitles, ... ..o oo i e (96.948) (129415) (11,635}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ... ... oo 10.876 24,262 10,323
Bank BOMMOWINES. . . . v ot ittt a et cn s e e e —_ 71,695 -—
Principal paymentsondebt. . .. .. .. .. e e (1.000) - (130,000)
Deferred financing costs. . . ... .. ... . i i s e (276) (556) {330
Cashdividends paid .. ...... . .ot i i it it ia e -_ -_ (10.330)
Tox payments related 10 vested deferred stock units. . ... .. ool — — {677)
Excess tax benefils from stock-based compensation. ... ... oo v i — - 3059
Purchase of treasury S10CK . . .. .. oo e e e e {11,186) (90,2807 {40,289)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . ... ......... ..ot {1.586) 5.121 (168.244)
Effectof exchange rate changes . ... . ... . i iir ittt 1417 4,951 (1.447)
INCREASE { DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .. ................ 32,862 35,218 (20,532)
Balance ot beginning of period . . .. . . ... e 132,146 165.008 200.226
Balance arend of period . . .. .. ... . e e e $165.008 $200.226 § 179694
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
BIETEST . 2 et et e e et et e e e e e $ 4671 5 4600 § 8117
INCOMIC BAXES . . ot vttt e et et e e ee e i s et b tam e nsananas s ansnenans $ 38820 § 50,105 & 75500
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Cashdividends declared . . ... .. 00ttt ien e it nat e $ — § 2653 2,717
Additional capital in excess of par resulting from tax benefit related to stock-based plans. ... § 1768 §  9.646 4.£00
Additional capital in excess of pur resulting from tax benefit related to conversion of debt 1o
COMIMOR SIOCK. « . . v it ittt e i e e e ieenen i ann it s s — .5 — 8J18
Treasury stock contributed to employee stock plan . ... ... . i i e $ 1000 § 1500 2,000
Capital expenditure purchases accrued in nccounts payable and accrued expenses . .. .. .. .. s — 3 — $ 10,220

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended
January 29, 2005, January 28, 2006 and February 3, 2007

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Orgunization and Business — The Men's Wearhouse, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company™) is a specialty
relailer of menswear. We operate throughout the United States primarily under the brand names of Men's
Wearhouse and K&G and under the brand name of Moores in Canada. We foliow the standard fiscal year of
the retail industry, which is a 52-week or 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31. Fiscal year
2004 ended on January 29, 2005, fiscal year 2005 ended on January 28, 2006 and fiscal year 2006 ended on
February 3, 2007. Fiscal years 2004 and 2005 included 52 weeks and fiscal 2006 included 53 weeks,

Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation,
Stock-based compensation and tuxedo rental product assets and amortization have been reclassified on the
consolidated statement of cash flows for fiscal year 2004 and 2005 to conform to the current period’s presentation.
Approximately $2.4 million has been reclassified from accounts receivable 1o other current assets on the
consolidated balance sheet for the period ended January 29, 2006 to conform to the current period’s presentation.
In addition, wxedo rental product assets have been reclassified from other assets on the consolidated balance sheet
as of January 29, 2006.

During fiscal year 2004, we opened six new casual clothing/sportswear concept stores in order to test an
expanded, more fashion-oriented merchandise concept for men and women, In March 20035, it was determined that
no further investments would be made into these test concept stores and, as of June 30, 2005, all six of the stores had
been closed. Net operating losses from these stores reduced diluted earnings per share by $0.05 and $0.11 for fiscal
2004 and 2005, respectively.

Principles of Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Men's
Wearhouse, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated
in the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financia) statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management 1o make estimates and assumplions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assels and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reporied amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Our most significant estimates and assumptions, as discussed in “Critical
Accounting Estimates™ under Item 7 elsewhere herein, are those relating to inventories and long-lived assets,
including goodwill, our estimated liabilities for self-insured portions of our workers’ compensation and employee
health benefit costs, our estimates relating o income taxes and our operating lease accounting.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents includes all cash in banks, cash on hand and all
highly fiquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less. As substantially all of our cash is held by
three financial institutions, we are exposed to risk of loss in the event of failure of any of these parties. However, due
1o the creditworthiness of these three financial institutions, we anticipate full performance and access to our
deposits and liquid investments.

Short-terin Investments — Short-term investments consist of Auction Rate Securities (“ARS™), which rep-
resent funds available for current operations. In accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” (*SFAS No. 115"), these short-term
investments are classified as available-for-sale and are carried at cost, or par value which approximates the fair
market value. These securities have stated maturities beyond three months but are priced and traded as short-term
instruments due to the liquidity provided through the interest rate mechanism of 7 10 35 days.
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Accounis Receivable — Accounts receivable consists of our receivables from third-party credit card providers
and other trade receivables, net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $0.3 million and $0.2 million in fiscal
2005 and 2006, respectively. Collectibility is reviewed reguiarly and the allowance is adjusted as necessary,

Inventories — Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined on the average cost
method and the retail cost methed. Inventory cost includes buying and distribution costs (merchandising, freight,
hangers and warehousing costs) asseciated with ending inventory.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost. Normal repairs and maintenance costs
are charged to earnings as incurred and additions and major improvements are capitalized. The cost of assets retired
or otherwise disposed of and the related allowances for depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the period
of disposal and the resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to eamings.

Buildings are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 23 years,
Depreciation of leasehold improvements is computed on the straight-line method over the term of the lease, which is
generally five to ten years based on the initial lease term plus first renewal option periods that are reasonably
assured, or the useful life of the assets, whichever is shorter. Furniture. fixiures and equipmen are depreciated using
primarily the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of three to 25 years.

Tuxedo Renital Product — Tuxedo rental product is amortized 1o cost of sales based on the cost of each unil
rented. The cost of each unit rented is estimated based on the number of times the unit is expected to be rented and
the average cost of the rental product. An estimate for lost and damaged rental product is also charged to cost of
sales. Tuxedo rental product is amortized to expense generally over a two to three year period. Amortization
expense was $8.9 million, $15.3 million and $16.9 million for fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Assers — Intangible assets are initially recorded at their fair values. [dentifiable intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortized to expense over the estimated useful life of the asset. Trademarks,
tradenames and other intangibles are amontized over estimated useful lives of 3 to 17 years using the straight-line
method. identifiable intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, including goodwill, are evaluated annually in
the fourth quarter, or more frequently if circumstances dictate, for impairment by comparison of their carying
amounts with the fair value of the individual assets. No impairmenmt was identified in fiscal 2004, 2005 or 2006.

Impairmeni of Long-Lived Asseis — We evaluate the carrying value of long-lived assets, such as property and
equipment and amortizable intangibles, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. I it is determined, based on estimated undiscounted future
cash flows, that an impairment has occurred, a loss is recognized currently for the impairment.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — As of January 28, 2006 and February 3, 2007, management estimates
that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried at
amounts that reasonably approximate their fair value.

Revenue Recognition — Clothing product revenue is recognized at the time of sale and delivery of mer-
chandise, net of actual sales retumns and a provision for estimated sales retumns, and excludes sales taxes. Revenues
from tuxedo rental, alteration and other services are recognized upon completion of the services. Proceeds from the
sale of gifi cards are recorded as a liability and are recognized as revenues when the cards are redeemed, We do not
recognize revenue from unredeemed gift cards as these amounts are reflected as a liability until escheated in
accordance with applicable laws.

Loyalty Program — We maintain a customer loyalty program in our Men's Wearhouse and Moores stores in
which customers receive points for purchases. Points are equivalent to dollars spent on a one-1o-one basis, excluding
any sales tax dollars. Upon reaching 500 points, customers are issued a $50 rewards certificate which they may
redeem for purchases at our Men's Wearhouse or Moores stores. Generally, reward certificates earned must be
redeemed no later than six months from the date of issuance. We accrue the estimated costs of the anticipated
certificate redemptions when the certificates are issued and charge such costs to cost of goods sold. Redeemed

38




THE MEN’S WEARHOUSE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

certificates are recorded as markdowns when redeemed and no revenue is recognized for the redeemed certificate
amounts. The estimate of costs associated with the loyalty program requires us to make assumptions related to the
cost of product or services to be provided to customers when the certificates are redeemed as well as redemption
rates.

Vendor Allowances — Vendor allowances received are recognized as a reduction of the cost of the merchan-
dise purchased.

Shipping and Hundling Costs — All shipping and handling costs for product sold are recognized as cost of
goods sold.

Operating Leases — Operaling leases relate primarily to stores and generally contain rent escalation clauses,
rent holidays, contingent rent provisions and occasionally leasehold incentives. Rent expense for operating leases is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, which is generally five to ten years based on the initial
lease term plus first renewal option periods that are reasonably assured. Rent expense for stores is included in cost of
sales as a part of occupancy cost and other rent is included in selling general and administrative expenses. The lease
terms commence when we take possession with the right to controt use of the leased premises and, for stores, is
generally 60 days prior to the date rent payments begin. Prior to fiscal 2006, we capitalized rent amounts allocated
1o the construction period for leased properties as leasehold improvements. In fiscal 2006, we adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) S1aff Position (“FSP"} No. FAS 13-1 ("FSP 13-17), “Accounting for Rental
Costs Incurred during a Construction Period,” which requires that rental costs associated with ground or building
operating leases that are incurred during a construction period be recognized as rental expense. The impact of the
adoption of FSP 13-1 for fiscal 2006 was approximately $2.2 million of additional expense.

Deferred rent that results from recognition of rent expense on a straight-line basis is included in other
liabilities. Landlord incentives received for reimbursement of leaschold improvements are recorded as deferred rent
and amortized as a reduction to rent expense over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are generally based on
percentages of sales and are recognized as store renl expense as they accrue.

Advertising — Advertising costs are expensed as incurred or, in the case of media production costs, when the
commercial first airs. Advertising expenses were $60.5 million, $61.5 million and $67.3 million in fiscal 2004, 2005
and 2006, respectively.

New Store Cosiy — Promotion and other costs associated with the opening of new stores are expensed as
incurred.

Store Closures and Relocations — Costs associated with store closures or relocations are charged to expense
when the liability is incurred. When we close or relocate a store, we record a lisbility for the present value of
estimated unrecoverable cost, which is substantially made up of the remaining net lease obligation.

Stock-Based Compensation — On January 29, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accouniing Stan-
dards (“SFAS") No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R™), which requires that the cost
resulting from all share-based payment transactions be recognized in the financial statements. This Statement
establishes the fair value method for measurement and requires all entities to apply this fair value method in
accounting for share-based payment Iransactions. The amount of compensation cost is measured based on the grant-
date fair value of the instrument issued and is recognized over the vesting period.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, we accounted for share-based awards to employees and directors using the
intrinsic value method in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to-Employees” (“APB 25”) as allowed under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”
(“SFAS 123"). SFAS 123R replaces SFAS 123 and supersedes APB 25. We adopted SFAS 123R using the medified
prospective transition method; therefore, results from prior periods have not been restated. Under this transition
method, stock-based compensation expense recognized in fiscal 2006 includes: (i) compensation cxpense for share-
based payment awards granted prior to, but ot yet vested at, January 29, 2006, based on the grant date fair value
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estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS {23; and (ii) compensation expense for the share-
based payment awards granted subsequent to January 29. 2006, based on the grant-date fair values estimated in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Stock-based compensation expense recognized under SFAS 123R
for fiscal 2006 was $7.0 million, which primarily related to stock options and deferred stock units. Stock-based
compensation expense for fiscal 2004 and 2005 was 30.1 million and $2.9 million, respectively. which primarily
related 1o deferred stock units.

SFAS 123R requires companies to estimate the fair vatue of share-based payments on the grant-date using an
option pricing model. Under SFAS 123, we used the Black-Scholes option pricing model for valuation of share-
based awards for our pro forma information. Upon adopiion of SFAS 123R, we elected o continue to use the Black-
Scholes option pricing model for valuing awards. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected o
vesl is recognized as expense over the requisite service period.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, we presented oll tax benefits resulting from the exercise of stock-based
compensation awards as operating cash flows in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. SFAS 123R requires
the benefits of 1ax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits)
to be classified as financing cash flows. For fiscal 2006, excess tax benefits realized from the exercise of stock-based
compensation awards was $3.1 million. The exercise of stock-based compensation awards resulted in a tax benefit
to us of $1.8 million, $9.6 million and $4.8 million for fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, which has been
recognized as capital in excess of par.

Had we elecied to apply the accounting standards of SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS 148") in 2004 and 2005. our net earnings and net
eamings per share would have been approximately the pro forma amounts indicated below (in thousands, except per
share data):

Fiscal Yenr
2004 2005

Neteamnings, asreported. .. .. ... ... o ittt i i $71,356  $103,903
Add: Stock-based compensation, net of tax included in reported net

LT 111 - 77 1,894
Deduct; Stock-based compensation, net of tax determined under fair-value

based MEthod ... i i it e e e e (3,017) {4,663)
Pro forma net eamings .. ... ...ttt rnn e i e $68416 $101,134
Net earnings per share:
As reported:

BaSiC .. e e $ 132 $ 193

Diluted . . e e e e $ 129 § 188
Pro forma

BaSiC .t ittt i e e e e ey $ 127 $ 1.88

Diluted . oo e e e e e §F 124 § 183

Refer 1o Note 6 for additional disclosures regarding stock-based compensation.

Stock Dividend — On June 13, 2005, we effected a three-for-two stock split by paying a 50% stock dividend to
sharcholders of record as of May 31, 2005,

Derivative Financial Instrumenis — We enter into foreign currency forward exchunge contracts 10 hedge
against foreign exchange risks associated with certain firmly committed. and certain otker probable, but not firmly
committed. inventory purchase transactions that are denominated in a foreign currency (primarily the Euro). Gains
and losses associated with these contracts are accounted for as part of the underlying inventory purchase
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transactions. These contracts have been accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 133™), as amended.
The disclosures required by SFAS No. 133 are included in Note 8.

Foreign Currency Translation — Assets and lizbilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at
the exchange rates in effect at each balance sheet date. Sharcholders’ equity is translated at applicable historical
exchange rates. Income, expense and cash flow jtems are translaled at average exchange rates during the year.
Resulting translation adjusiments are reported as a separate component of shareholders' equity.

Comprehensive Income — Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during the period presented
that result from transactions and other economic events other than transactions with shareholders.

Segmeni Information — We consider our business as one operating segment based on the similar economic
characteristics of our three brands. Revenues of Canadian retail operations were $174.9 million, $193.5 million and
$228.5 million for fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Long-lived asseis of our Canadian operations were
$81.8 million and $77.2 million os of the end of fiscal 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Accounting for Inveniary Cosis — In November 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 151, “Inventory Costs —an Amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin (“ARB™) No. 43,
Chapter 47 (“SFAS No. 1517). SFAS No. 151 amends ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, to clarify that abnormal amounts
of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted materials (spoilage) should be recognized as current
period charges. It also requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on
the normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2005. The adoption of SFAS No. 151 did not have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations
or cash flows,

Accounting for the Foreign Earnings Repaitriation Provision — In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB
Staff Position (“FSP") No. FAS 109-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Eamnings Repatriation
Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004”7 (“FSP 109-2"). FSP 109-2 provides guidance under
FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” with respect to recording the potential impact of the
repatriation provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“Jobs Creation Act™) on enterprises’ income tax
expense and deferred tax liability. The Jabs Creation Act provided a one-time 85% dividends received deduction for
certain foreign earnings that were repatriated under a plan for reinvestment in the United Siates, provided certain
criteria were met. During the founh quarter of 2005, we completed our evaluation and repatriated US$74.7 million
of foreign earnings from our Canadian subsidiaries. As a result of this repatriation, we recorded an additional
$3.9 million in income tax expenses, which reduced our 2005 diluted earnings per share by $0.07.

Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — In March 2003, the FASB issued FASB Inter-
pretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations”™ (“FIN 47™). FIN 47 clarifies that the
term “conditional” as used in SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” refers to a legal
obligation to perform an asset retirement activity even if the timing and/or settlement are conditional on a future
event that may or may not be within the control of an entity. Accordingly, the entity must record a liability for the
conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the obligation can be reasonably estimated. FIN 47 is
effective no later than the end of the fiscal year ending afier December 15, 2003, The adoption of FIN 47 did not
have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — A Replacement of APB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3™ (“SFAS No. 154™). SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application to prior
periods’ financial statements for changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS No. 154 is effeclive for accounting changes and
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS No. 154 did not
have a material impact on our financial position, resulis of operations or cash flows.
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Determining the Amortization Period of Leasehold Improvements — In June 2005, the Emerging Issues Task
Force (“EITF") reached a consensus on Issue No. 05-06, “Determining the Amortization Period for Leasehold
Improvements Purchased after Lease Inception or Acquired in a Business Combination” (“EITF 05-06"). The
guidance requires that leasehold improvements acquired in a business combination or purchased subsequent to the
inception of a lease be amortized over the lesser of the usefu) life of the assets or ¢ term that includes renewals that
are reasonably assured at the date of the business combination or purchase. The guidance is effective for periods
beginning after June 29, 2005. The adoption of EITF 05-06 did not have a material impact on our financial position.
resulis of operations or cash flows,

Recenily Issued Accounting Pronouncements — In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncenainty in Income Taxes, an [nterpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48”). FIN 48
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a Company’s financial statements in
accordance with FASB No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for a tax position 1aken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance
on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.
Differences between the amounts recognized in the statements of financial position prior to the adoption of FIN 48
and the amounts reported after adoption are 10 be accounied for as an adjustment to the beginning balance of
retained earnings. FIN 48 is effective as of the beginning of fiscal years that begin after December 15, 2006. We will
adopt FIN 48 in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of FIN 48
will have on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In June 2006, the EITF ratified its conclusion on EITF Issue No. 06-02 “Accounting for Sabbatical Leave and
Other Similar Benefits Pursuant to FASB Statement No. 43, “Accounting for Compensated Absences” (“EITF
06-02"). EITF 06-02 requires that compensation expense associated with a sabbatical leave, or other similar benefit
arrangement, be accrued over the requisite service period during which an employee earns the benefit. EITF 06-02
is effective for fiscal years beginning afier December 15, 2006 and should be recognized as either a change in
accounting principle through a cumulative effect adjustment 1o retained camings as of the beginning of the year of
adoption or a change in accounting principle through retrospective application to all prior periods. We will adopt
EITF 06-02 in the first quanter of fiscal 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of EITF 06-02
will have on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In June 2006, the EITF ratified its conclusion on EITF No. 06-03, “How Taxes Collected From Cusiomers and
Remitied to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That Is, Gross versus Net
Presentation),” (“EITF 06-03"). EITF 06-03 concluded that the presentation of taxes assessed by a governmental
authority that is directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer such as sales,
use, value added and certain excise 1axes is an accounting policy decision that should be disclosed in a Company's
financial statements, Additionally, companies that record such taxes on a gross basis should disclose the amounts of
those taxes in interim and annual financial statements for each period for which an income statement is presented if
those amounts are significant. EITF 06-03 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The
adoption of EITF 06-03 will have no effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157. “Fair Value Measurements™ (“SFAS 1577). This
statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The statement applies whenever other statements require or
permit assets or Jiabilities to be measured at fair value. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on our financial
position, results of operations and cash flows.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements When Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements™ ("SAB 108™),
which provides interpretive guidance regarding the consideration given to prior year misstatements when deter-
mining materiality in current year financial statements. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after
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November !5, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a maierial impact on our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, *“The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities-Including an amendment of FASB Swatement No. 1157 ("SFAS 1597). SFAS 159 provides companies
with an oplion to measure certain financial instruments and other items at fair value with changes in fair value
reported in carnings, SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after Novemnber 15, 2007. We are currently
evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS 159 will have on our financial position, results of operations and
cush flows.

2, Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period
and net earnings. Diluted EPS gives effect to the potential dilution which would have occurred if additional shares
were issued for stock options exercised under the reasury stock method, as well as the potential dilution that could
occur if our contingent convertible debt or other contrizets to issue common steck were converted or exercised. Cur
convertible debt was redeemed, at our election during the fourth quarter of 2006. Refer to Note 3 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The following table reconciles basic and diluted weighted average common
shares outstanding and the related net earnings per share (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006

NET BAMINES .. i e e et e $71,356  $103.903  $148,575
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding ... ....... 54,044 53,753 53,111
Effect of dilutive securilies:

Convertible notes . . ........ .o n.. — 266 855

Stock options and equity-based compensation , . ........... 1176 1,346 783
Diluted weighted average common shares omstanding. ........ 55.220 535,365 54,749
Net eamings per share:

BasiC. ... i e e $ 132 $ 193 $ 280

Diluted . ... e e $ 129 § 188 3§ 271

3. Long-Term Debt

On December 21, 2005, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agree-
ment”) with a group of banks to amend and restate our revolving credit facility. On February 2, 2007, we entered
inlo an Agreement and Amendment to the Credit Agreement effective as of January 31, 2007 (the “Amendment”).
The Amendment {i) extends the maturity date of the revotving credit facility under the Credit Agreement to
February 11, 2012 and (ii) increases the total senior secured revolving credit facility under the Credit Agreement
from $100.0 million to $200.0 million, which can be expanded to $250.0 million upon additional lender
commitments. The Credit Agreement also provided our Canadian subsidiaries with a senior secured term loan
used to fund the repatriation of US$74.7 million of Canadian earnings in January 2006 under the American Jobs
Creation Act of 2004. The Canadian term loan matures on February 16, 2011, The Credit Agreement is secured by
the stock of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries. The Credit Agreement has several borrowing and interest rate
options including the following indices: (i) an alternate base rate (equal 10 the greater of the prime rate or the federal
funds rate plus 0.5%) or {i1) LIBD rate or {iii) CDO rate. Advances under the Credit Agrecment bear interest at a rate
per annum using the applicable indices plus a varying interest rate margin up to 1.125%. The Credit Agreement also
provides for fees applicable to unused commitments ranging from 0.100% to 0.175%. The effective interest rate for
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the Canadian term loan was 5.0% at February 3, 2007. As of February 3, 2007, there were no borrowings
outstanding under the revolving credit facility and there was US$73.0 million outstanding under the Canadian term
loan.

The Credit Agreement contains certain restrictive and financial covenants, including the requirement to
maintain certain financial ratios. The restrictive provisions in the Credit Agreement have been modified to afford us
with greater operating flexibility than was provided for in our previous facility and to reflect an overall covenant
structure that is generally representative of a commercial loan made to an investment-grade company. Our deb,
however, is not rated, and we have not sought, and are not seeking, a rating of our debt. We were in compliance with
the covenants in the Credit Agreemem as of February 3, 2007.

On October 21, 2003, we issued $130.0 million of 3.125% Convertible Senior Notes due 2023 (“Notes™) ina
private placement. Interest on the Noles was payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15 of each year,
beginning on April 15, 2004. The Notes were scheduled to mature on October 15, 2023. However, we had the right
1o redeem the Notes between October 20, 2006 and October 19, 2008 if the price of our common stock reached
certain levels.

During certain periods, the Notes were convertible by holders into shares of our common stock at a conversion
rale of 35.1309 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of Notes, which was equivalent to a conversion
price of $28.47 per share of common stock (subject to adjustment in cerain events), under the following
circumstances: (1) if the closing sale price of our common stock issuable upon conversion exceeded 120% of
the conversion price under specified conditions; (2) if we called the Notes for redemption; or (3) upon the
occurrence of specified corporate transactions. Upon conversion of the Notes, in lieu of delivering common stock
we could, at our election, deliver cash or a combination of cash and common stock. However, on January 28, 2005,
we entered into a supplemental indenture relating to the Notes and irmevocably elected to setile the principal amount
at issuance of such Notes in 100% cash when they become convertible and are surrendered by the holders thereol.
The Notes were general senior unsecured obligations, ranking on parity in right of payment with all our existing and
future unsecured senior indebtedness and our other general unsecured obligations, and senior in right of payment
with all our future subordinated indebtedness. The Notes were effectively subordinated to all of our senior secured
indebtedness and all indebtedness and liabilities of our subsidiaries,

On November 16, 2006, we issued a press release announcing that, as a result of the closing sale price of the
Company's common stock exceeding 140% of the conversion price for the requisite number of days during the
requisite period, we had elected to redeem the full $130.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Notes. Holders
of the Notes had the right to convert their notes at any time prior 10 two business days immediately preceding the
redemption date. As indicated above, we had irrevocably elecied to settle the principal amount at issuance of the
Notes in cash when and if surrendered for conversion. Under the terms governing the Notes, holders of approx-
imately $127.0 million principal amount of the Notes exercised their conversion right in lieu of having their notes
redeemed and we exercised our right 1o pay cash for the principal amount of the Notes converted in licu of issuing
common stock. The market value of the common stock te be issued upon conversion that excecded the principal
amount was paid by delivering common stock. As a result, we paid approximately $127.0 million in cash and issued
1,222,364 shares of the Company's common stock pursuant to the requested conversions. The remaining
$3.0 million principal amount of the Notes was redeemed on December 15, 2006 with such payment and accrued
and unpaid interest being made in cash. Notes converted into common stock prior to the redemption date were not
entitled 10 receive accrued and unpaid interest. In connection with the conversion and redemption of the Notes, we
paid approximately $130.1 million in cash, issued 1,222,364 shares of the Company’s common stock and wrote-off
approximately $1.3 million of unamortized deferred financing costs.

We utilize letters of credit primarily to secure inventory purchases. At February 3, 2007, letters of credit
totaling approximately $19.0 million were issued and outstanding.
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4. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consisis of the following (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006

Current tax expense:

Federal ... ...ttt it e et et e $27,067 $46,050 $61.487

07 - 2,078 3,567 5,447

o) (=1 1 7.992 6,185 10,469
Deferred tax expense (benefit):

Federal and state . . ... ..ot irre ettt iartrnnnnenes 3,333 1.206 (1,804)

Foreign .. ..o i e © 1,889 1777 334

Total o\t e e e e e $42,359 358,785 375,933

No provision for U.S. income taxes or Canadian withholding taxes has been made on the cumulative
undistributed earnings of Moores (approximately $94.5 million at February 3, 2007). The potential deferred
tax liability associated with these eamings, net of foreign tax credits associated with the eamings, is estimated to be
$13.0 million.

Tn December 2004, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 109-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the
Foreign Eamnings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004”. The Jobs Creation Act
provides a one-time 85% dividends received deduction for certain foreign earnings that are repatriated under a plan
for reinvestment in the United States, provided certain criteria are met. During the fourth quarter of 2005, we
repatriated US$74.7 million of foreign eamings from our Canadian subsidiaries under the provisions of the Jobs
Creation Act. As a result of this repatriation, we recorded an additional $3.9 million in income tax expenses, which
reduced our 2005 diluted earnings per share by $0.07. The 2005 income tax provision also includes a $2.3 million
reduction of previously recorded tax accruals due to developments associated with certain tax audits and a
$2.0 million reduction in previously recorded tax accruals associated with favorable developments on certain
outstanding income tax matiers. The 2006 income tax provision includes a $5.2 million reduction of previously
recorded tax accruals due to favorable developments associated with certain tax audits.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48™). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
1axes recognized in a Company's financial statements in accordance with FASB No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for a tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax retumn. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition, Differences between the amounts recognized in the
statements of financial position prior to the adoption of FIN 48 and the amounts reported after adoption are to be
accounted for as an adjustment to the beginning balance of retained eamings. FIN 48 is effective as of the beginning
of fiscal years that begin after December 15, 2006. We will adopt FIN 48 in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. We are
currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on our financial position, results of operations
and cash flows.
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A reconciliation of the statutory federal income 1ax rate to our effective tax rate is as follows:

Fiscal Year
004 2005 2006
Federal SIatMOTY FAE . . . .ottt i i e n et ia s 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefut . ... ... ... il 1.7 2.7 27
Taxes from earnings repatriation under the Jobs Creation Act . ............ — 24 —
Reversal of 18X accmuals . . .. v v it ittt it s — @7 @23
Foreign 1ax rate differential andother. . .......... ... ... coiiiial 06 (1.3 (.6

313% 36.1% 8%

At January 28, 2006, we had net deferred tax liabilities of $13.1 million with $11.3 million classified as other
current asseits and $24.4 million classified as other liabilities (noncucrent). At February 3, 2007, we had net deferred
tax liabilities of $3.2 million with $9.0 million classified as other current assets and $12.2 million classified as other
liabilities (noncurrent).

Total deferred tax assets and liabilities and the related temporary differences as of January 28, 2006 and
February 3, 2007 were as follows (in thousands}):

January 28, February 3,
2006 2007

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued rent and otherexpenses . .......... .. i il $14912  §$17,207
Accrued COMPENSAtiON . .. ... ..ottt 4,185 5.831
Accnued inventory markdowns. . . ... ... i e 1,387 1,766
Deferred intercompany profits . .. ... ... . il e 4,196 4,889
Unused state operating loss carryforwards .. .......... ... .0 et 491 —
Unused foreign tax credits. .. ... ..o iiin i i —_ 222
13T 322 —

25,493 29,915

Deferred tax liabilities:

Capitalized inventory COSIS .. ... ..ttt iian e e (6,336) (7,631)
Property and eQUIpmMent, . . oo vv ittt i (23,041) (21,108)
Intangibles . .. ... ... {3,265 {4.157)
Deferred inlBrest . . .. .. ittt e e e e {5,911) —_
[ 1 Y= —_ {226)
(38.553) (33,122)

Nert deferred tax Habilities. . . ... ... i e $(13.060) & (3.207)
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§. Other Assets and Accrued Expenses

QOther assets consist of the following (in thousands):
Javuary 28,  February 3,
2006 2007

Trademarks, tradenames and other imangibles . . ... ................. $ 9733 $ 9316
Accumulated amOMiZAUON. . . . .. . ... ...t i entiannnannans (4,261} (4,418)
5472 4,898
Depositsandother .......... ... ... .o i 8,442 7,153
Total Other assels .. .. ..ttt it e i $13914 512,051
Accrued expenses consist of the following (in thousands):
Accrued salary, bonus and vacation . .. ... ... oo e $29.707 $31,323
Sales, payroll and property taxes payable. .. ... ... ... oo, 12,343 14,581
Unredeemed gift certificates .. ............. i, 19,404 19,791
Accrued workers compensation and medical costs ., ... ... 0o a. 8,873 9,387
L0 1T 21,608 20,167
.Y St $91,935 $95,249

6. Capital Stock, Stock Options and Benefit Plans
Dividends

On June 13, 2005, we effected a three-for-two stock split by paying a 509% stock dividend to shareholders of
record as of May 31, 2005.

Cash dividends paid were approximately $10.8 million during the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007. The
quarterly cash dividends per share for fiscal 2006 are presented below:

First quarter ended April 29,2006 . . .. .. ... ... . i i e 30.05
Second quarter ended July 29, 2006 . ... ... .. L. e $0.05
Third quarter ended October 28,2006 . ... ... ... ot i i e $0.05
Fourth quarter ended February 3, 2007 .. ... ... ... ..o i $0.05

In January 2007, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per share of our common
stock payable on March 30, 2007 10 sharcholders of record on March 20, 2007. The dividend payout is
approximately $2.7 million and is included in accrued expenses as of February 3, 2007.

In March 2007, our Board of Directors declared a guarterly cash dividend of $0.06 per share payable on July 6,
2007 to shareholders of record at the close of business on June 27. 2007,

Stock Repurchase Program

In September 2003, the Board of Directors authonized a program for the repurchase of up to $100.0 million of
our commen stock in the open market or in private transactions. As of January 29, 2005, we had repurchased under
the September 2003 program 2,108,100 shares at a cost of $42.4 million in private transactions and 3,054,600 shares
at a cost of $51.4 million in open market transections, for a total of 5,162,700 shares at an average price per share of
$18.17. During fiscal 2004, a total of 484,500 shares at a cost of $8.7 million were repurchased under this program
at an average price per share of $17.96.
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In June 2004, the Board of Directors authorized a program for the repurchase of up to $50.0 million of our
common stock in the open market or in private transactions. This authorization superceded the approximately
$6.2 mitlion we had remaining under the September 2003 authorization. As of January 29, 2005, a total of
149,100 shares at a cost of $2.5 million were repurchased in open market transactions under this program at an
average price per share of $16.66. Under all authorized programs during fiscal 2004, we repurchased 633,600 shares
of our common stock at a cost of $11.2 million, with an average repurchase price of $17.65 per share. As of
January 28, 2006, we had repurchased under the June 2004 program 1,652,850 shares at a cost of $43.0 million in
open market transactions al an average price per share of $26.00,

In May 2005, the Board of Directors approved a replenishment of our share repurchase program to
$50.0 million by authorizing $43.0 million to be added to the remaining $7.0 million under the June 2004
authorization program. As of January 28, 2006, a total of 1,696,000 shares at a cost of $49.8 million were
repurchased in open market transactions under this program at an average price per share of $29.36. On January 25,
2006, the Board of Directors authorized a new $100.0 million share repurchase program of our common stock. This
authorization superceded the approximately $0.2 million we had remaining under the May 20035 authorization. No
shares were repurchased under this program as of January 28, 2006.

During fiscal 20085, a total of 3,199,750 shares at s cost of $90.3 million were repurchased in open market
transactions under ail authorized programs at an average price per share of $28.21.

The following table shows activity under the January 2006 treasury stock repurchase program during fiscal
2006 (in thousands, except share data and average price per share).

Average
Price Per
Shares Cost Share
Repurchases under the program in open market transactions. . ... 1,134,000 540,280  $35.53
Total shares repurchased during fiscal 2006. . ............... 1.134,000 $40,280  $35.53

The remaining balance available under the January 2006 authorization at February 3, 2007 is $59.7 million.

A reconciliation of our treasury shares for the past three fiscal years is provided below:

Treasury
Shares
Balance, January 31, 2004 . .. ... . e 10,469,135
Treasury stock issued to profit sharing plan. . . ... ..o oo (65.616)
Purchases of 1reasury SI0CK. . .. o v v v et e it tne et in e cn e rannnerarns 633,600
Balance, January 29, 2005 . . . . ... .. i e i e 11,037,519
Treasury stock tssued to profitsharng plan. ... ... ... . oo oo, {67,628)
Purchases of treasury stock. . . .. ... e 3,199,750
Balance, January 28, 2006 .. .. ... ... e i e e 14,169,241
Treasury stock issued to profit sharing plan. . ....... ... ... ... .. oo (68,564)
Purchases of treasury stock. . ... ... o e 1,134,000
Balance, February 3, 2007 . .. . o e e, 15,234,677
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Preferred Stock

Our Board of Directors is authorized to issue up to 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to determine the
dividend rights and terms, redemption rights and terms, liquidation preferences, conversion rights, voting nights and
sinking fund provisions of those shares without any further vote or act by the company shareholders. There was no
issued preferred stock as of January 28, 2006 and February 3, 2007.

Stock Plans

We have adopted the 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan (formerly known as the 1996 Stock Option Plan} (1996
Plan") which, as amended, provides for an aggregate of up to 2,775,000 shares of our common stock (or the fair
market value there of)} with respect to which stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, deferred stock
units and performance based awards may be granted to full-time key employees (excluding certain officers); the
1998 Key Employee Stock Option Plan (“1998 Pian™) which, as amended, provides for the grant of options to
purchase up to 3,150,000 shares of our common stock to full-time key employees (excluding certain officers). and
the 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan which provides for an aggregate of up to 900,000 shares of our common stock
{or the fair market value there of) with respect to which stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
deferred stock units and performance based awards may be granted to full-time key employees. Each of the plans
will expire at the end of ten years following the effective date of such plan; no awards may be granted pursuant to the
plans after the expiration date. The 1996 Plan will expire March 29, 2014, ten years following its amended and
restated effective date. In fiscal 1992, we also adopted a Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (“Ditector
Plan") which, as amended, provides for an aggregate of up to 251,250 shares of our common stock with respect to
which stock aptions, stock appreciation rights or restricted stock awards may be granted to non-employee directors
of the Company. In fiscal 2001, the Director Plan’s termination date was extended to February 23, 2012. Options
granted under these plans must be exercised within ten years of the date of grant.

Generally, options granted pursuant to the employee plans vest at the rate of 1/3 of the shares covered by the
grant on each of the first three anniversaries of the date of grant. However, a significant portion of options granted
under these Plans vest annually in varying increments over a period from one to ten years, Under the 1996 Plan and
the 2004 Plan, options may not be issued at a price less than 100% of the fair market value of our stock on the date of
prant. Under the 1996 Plan and the 2004 Plan, the vesting, transferability restrictions and other applicable
provisions of any stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, deferred stock units or performance based awards will
be determined by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors. Options granted under the
Director Plan vest one year afler the date of grant and are issued at a price equal to the fair market value of our stock
on the date of grant; provided, however, that the committee who administers the Director Plan may elect to grant
slock appreciation rights, having such terms and conditions as the committee determines, in lieu of any option grant,
Restricted stock awards granted under the Director Plan vest one year after the date of grant, Granis of deferred
stock units generally vest over a three year period; however, certain grants vest annually a1 varying increments over
a period up 10 seven years,

As of February 3, 2007, 1,652,034 shares were available for grant under existing plans and 3,599,752 shares of
common stock were reserved for future issuance.
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Stock Options

The following table is a summary of our stock option activity:

Shares Under  Weighted-Average Options
Option Exercise Price Exercisable
Options outstanding, January 31,2004 ............ 4,672,407 $13.84 2,166,741
Granted . ....... ... .. e 367,500 $19.52
Exercised . ...ttt (734,342) $13.28
Forfeited. . .. ... .. ... .. i i, (172,783) 51229
I Options outstanding, January 29,2005 ............ 4,132,782 $14.51 2,021,213
| Granted ......unn e 21,000 $31.54
Exercised . . ..ottt e e (1,667,477) $13.69
Forfeited. . ......... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... (479,760) 314.17
Options outstanding, January 28,2006 ............ 2,006,545 $15.58 935,516
! Granted . ... .. 16,500 $41.68
Exercised . .o v it e (573,689) $15.86
Forfeited. .. ... .. e e (15,340) $11.85
Options outstanding, February 3, 2007 ............ 1,434,016 $15.81 669,772
Granis of stock options outstanding as of February 3, 2007 are summarized as follows:
Options Qutslandiog Optlons Exercisable
Weighted-
Average Weighted-  Aggregate Weighted-  Aggregate
Remalning Average Intrinsic Avernge Intrinsic
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Value Number Exercise Value
Exercise Prices Qutstanding Life Price 000's) Exercisable Price (000°s)
$797101200..... 232,234 6.1 Years $ 9.55 $ 7,959 82,983 $ 929 $ 2,866
120010 15.00 ... .. 536,447 5.2 Years 14.36 15,801 267,195 14.37 7,869
150010 2000 ... .. 420489 4.1 Years 16.22 11,604 281,742 16.31 7,752
200010 2500 ... .. 197,994 7.7 Years 21.62 4,396 18,000 21.58 400
2500w 4382....,. 46,852 5.7 Years 35.25 402 19,852 3298 215
$7971w04382..... 1434016 5.4 Years $15.81 $40.162 669,772 $15.30 $19,102

During fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006, 367,500, 21,000 and 16,500 stock options were granted, respectively, at a
weighted-average fair value of $15.82, $16.41, and $17.72, respectively. The fair value of options is estimated on
the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The following weighied average assumptions were

used for option grants for each respective period:

Risk-free interest rates. . . ...............
Expected lives. . ......................
Dividend yield .......................
Expected volatility ....................

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006
.................. 355 4.09% 4.74%
.................. 6 years 6 years 5 years
.................. 0% 0% 0.58%
.................. 5093% 48.24% 42.68%
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The expected volatility is based on historical volatility of our common stock. The risk-free interest rate is based
on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The expected term represents the period of time the
options are expected Lo be outstanding after their grant date. The dividend yield is based on the average of the annual
dividend divided by the market price of our common stock at the time of declaration. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised during fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006 was $5.3 million, $26.2 million and $12.4 million, respectively.
As of February 3, 2007, we have unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested stock options of
approximately $3.4 million which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.5 years.

Restricted Stock and Deferred Stock Units

The following table is a summary of our restricted stock and deferred stock unit activity:

Welghted-
Average

Grant-Date

Nonvested Shares Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at January 31,2004 ... ... ... ... . i i 6.000 $15.53
L 111 1= ¢ 12,000 $20.62
VEStEd . .. e e e e e e e 6,000y 31553
Forfeited .. ittt i ittt e e e e — $ —
Nonvested at January 29, 2005 ... ... ... . o v i 12,000 $20.62
Granted . ... . e et 530,960 $28.33
RY 7= o O (12.000)  $20.62
50 31 =+ [ (18,072) $27.77
Nonvested at January 28,2006 . .. ... ... .oittnee i 512,888 $28.35
11 - 92,252 $36.14
B0 (15 TSP (76,985)  $28.69
FOMeited . . ... e e et e (14,453}  $28.16
Nonvested at February 3,2007 .. ........ ... ... .. i i i 513,702 $28.69

(1) Includes 19,164 shares relinquished for 1ax payments related 10 the vested deferred stock units.

During fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006, 12,000, 530,960, and 92,252 restricted and deferred stock units,
respectively, were granted al a weighted-average grant date fair value of $20.62, $28.33, and $36.14, respectively.
As of February 3, 2007, we have unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested restricted stock and
deferred stock units of approximately $9.2 million which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 2.1 years. The total fair value of shares vested during fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006 was $0.1 million,
$0.4 million and $2.8 million, respectively. At February 3, 2007, there were total nonvested shares of 513,702,
including 105,800 nonvested restricied shares.
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A reconciliation of the nonvested restricted shares is provided below:

Nonvested Restricted Shares Shares
Nonvested at January 31,2004 . . ... .. .. i e e, 6,000
L 711 [ 12,000
L £ (6,000)
Forfelted . . e —
Nonvested at January 29, 2005 . . .. ..ottt it e 12,000
L 1T 105,800
BT = (12,000)
Forfeited ... .. i i e e e et e e e e e e _
Nonvested at January 28,2006 . . ... ... ... .. i i i i 105,800
1T (= P 9,000
=] - [ {9.000)
Forfeited ... e e et e —
Nonvested at February 3.2007 . . ... ... ... . 105,800

During fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006, 12,000, 9,000 and 9,000 restricted stock shares, respectively, were granted
1o our outside directors under the Director Plan at an average grant price of $20.62, $34.64 and $43.82 per share.
respectively.

On November 11, 2005, we entered into a Second Amended and Restaied Employment Agreement (“Agree-
ment") with David H. Edwab, Vice Chairman of the Company. Simultancously with the execution of this
Agreement, we granted to Mr. Edwab 96,800 shares of restricted stock under the 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan
at a grant price per share of $30.00, which vest in equal numbers over a five-year period beginning on February 6.
2007. In exchange for the issuance of the restricted shares, options to purchase 165,000 shares of our common stock
which were held by Mr, Edwab were cancelled.

Employee Profit Sharing and Stock Purchase Plans

We have an employee stock ownership plan, which is a stock bonus plan, and an employee tax-deferred savings
plan, which is a profit sharing plan. Both plans cover all eligible employees. Contributions to the employee stock
ownership plan are made at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Employer matching contributions to the profit
sharing plan are made based on a formula set by the Board of Directors from time to time. During fiscal 2004, 2005
and 2006, contributions charged 1o operations were $2.2 million, $2.9 million and $3.5 million, respectively, for the
plans.

In 1998, we adopted an Employee Stock Discount Plan (“ESDP") which allows employees to authorize after-
tax payroll deductions 1o be used for the purchase of up 10 2,137,500 shares of our common stock at 85% of the
Jesser of the fair market value on the first day of the offering period or the fair market value on the last day of the
offering period. We make no contributions to this plan but pay all brokerage, service and other costs incurred,
Effective for offering periods beginning July 1, 2002, the plan was amended so that a participant may not purchase
more than 125 shares during any calendar quarter.
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The fair value of ESDP shares is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model in the quarter that the
purchase occurs with the following weighted average assumptions for each respective period:

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006
Risk-free interest rales ... .o v i i i e i it e 1.50% 3.33% 4.77%
Expected lives ... ... ... i e e 0.25 0.25 0.25
Dividend yield .. ... .o e e e 0% 0% 0.58%
Expected volatility . ... ..o e 32.28% 3143% 39.07%

During fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006, employees purchased 73,817, 65,596 and 62,543 shares, respectively,
under the ESDP, the weighted-average fair value of which was $15.18, $21.76 and $27.64 per share, respectively.
We recognized approximately $0.7 million of stock-based compensation expense related 10 the ESDP for fiscal
2006. As of February 3, 2007, 1,530,616 shares were reserved for future issuance under the ESDP.

7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Changes in the net carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended January 28, 2006 and February 3, 2007 are
as follows (in thousands):

Balance, January 29, 2005 .. . ... ... e e $55.824
Translation adjustment . .. ... . e e 1,777

Balance, January 28, 2006 . . ... .. i e e 57,601
Translation adjustment . .. . ..o e e {734)

Balance, February 3, 2007 . . .. ... o it $56,867

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of our other intangibles, which are included in other
assets in the accompanying balance sheet, are as follows (in thousands):

January 28, February 3,
2006 2007

Trademarks, tradenames and other intangibles .. .................... $9,733 $9.316
Accumulated amOrtZation. . . .. ..ot it cocronetstarnnas (4.261) (4,418
L (o7 | N OO $5472 $ 4,808

The pretax amoniization expense associated with inlangible assets totaled approximately $8537,000, $954.000
and $897,000 for fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Pretax amortization expense associated with intangible
assets at February 3, 2007 is estimated to be approximately $811,000 for cach of the fiscal years 2007 and 2008,
$794,000 for the fiscal year 2009, $551,000 for the fiscal year 2010 and $497,000 for the fiscal year 2011.

8. Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging

In connection with our direct sourcing program, we may enter into purchase commitments that are denom-
inated in a foreign currency (primarily the Euro). Our practices include entering into foreign currency forward
exchange contracts to minimize foreign currency exposure relaied to forecasted purchases of certain inventories.
Under SFAS No. 133, such contracts have been designated as and accounted for as cash flow hedges, The settlement
terms of the forward contracts, including amount, currency and maturity, correspond with payment terms for the
merchandise inventeries, Aay ineffective portion (arising ftom the change in the difference between the spot rate
and the forward rate) of a hedge is reported in eamnings immediately. At January 28, 2006, we had three contracts
maturing in varying increments to purchase an aggregate notional amount of $1.2 million in foreign currency.
maturing at various dates through April 2006. At February 3, 2007, we had no contracts outstanding. During fiscal
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2005 and 2006, no pre-tax hedge ineffectiveness was recognized. During fiscal 2004, $60 thousand pre-tax hedge
ineffectiveness was recognized.

The changes in the fair value of the foreign currency forward exchange contracts are maiched to inventory
purchases by period and are recognized in eamings as such inventory is sold. The fair value of the forward exchange
contracts is estimated by comparing the cost of the foreign currency to be purchased under the contracts using the
exchange rates obtained under the contracts (adjusted for forward points) 1o the hypothetical cost using the spot rate
at year-end.

9. Related Party Transactions

On August 16, 2004, we purchased a store (land and building, which we had been leasing) in Datlas, Texas for
$1.0 million from 8239 Preston Road, Inc., a Texas corporation of which George Zimmer, Chairman of the Board
and CEO of the Company, James E. Zimmer, Senior Vice President-Merchandising of the Company, and Richard
Goldman, a former officer and director of the Company, each owned 20% of the outstanding common stock, and
Laurie Zimmer, sister of George and James E. Zimmer, owned 40% of the outstanding common stock.

On August 20, 2004, we purchased a 1980 Gulfstream I aircraft from Regal Aviation L.L.C. ("Regal
Aviation”) for $5.0 mitlion. Regal Aviation operates a private air charter service and is a limited liability company of
which George Zimmer owns 99%. In addition, on August 20, 2004, we entered into a leasing arrangement with
Regal Aviation under which Regal Aviation operates, manages and markets the aircraft as well as provides the
appropriate Right personnel and services. The aircraft is utilized 10 provide air transportation from time to time for
George Zimmer and is leased to third parties for charter. On August 31, 2006, Regal Aviation sold substantially all
of its assets to an unrelated third party who now provides us those services previously provided by Regal Aviation.

On October 15, 2004, we purchased a warehouse facility located in Houston, Texas (the “Facility”) from Zig Zag
for $0.7 million. Zig Zag is a Texas joint venture, in which Richard E. Goldman, George Zimmer and James E. Zimmer
were the sole and equal joint venturers. Prior to the purchase of the Facility, we leased the Facility from Zig Zag.

Based on the results of appraisals and review of the terms of other Regal Aviation leasing arrangements with
unrelated third parties, we believe that the terms of the aircrafi purchase and leasing agreements and the terms of the
store purchase and the Facility purchase were comparable to what would have been available to us from unaffiliated
third parties at the time such agreements were entered into.
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THE MEN’S WEARHOUSE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

10. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease commitments

We lease reiail business locations, office and warehouse facilities, copier equipment and automative equip-
ment under various noncancelable capital and operating leases expiring in various years through 2027. Rent expense
for operating leases for fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006 was $95.7 million, $101.4 million and $112.9 million,
respectively. and includes contingent rentals of $0.8 million, $0.6 million and $0.7 million, respectively. Minimum
future rental payments under noncancelable capital and operating leases as of February 3, 2007 for each of the next
five years and in the aggregate are as follows (in thousands):

Operating Capital
Leases Leases

Fiscal Year
2007 . o e e e e e e e e 5113917 $1.079
2008 . e e e 105,529 943
2000 . e e et e e i e 92,773 784
2000 . . e e e e 76,426 611
20l e e e e e 57,847 430
Thereafer . . ..o e e e 143,725 627
L $590,217 4474
Amounts representing iNIerest. . . ... .. ovt it iiinnnarennnenenna (1,127)
Capital lease obligations. ... ........0 i iniii i $ 3,347

Leases on retail business locations specify minimum rentals plus common area mainienance charges and
possible additional rentals based upon percentages of sales. Most of the retail business location leases provide for
renewal options at rates specified in the leases. In the normal course of business, these leases are generally renewed
or replaced by other leases.

At February 3, 2007, the gross capitalized balance and the accumulated depreciation batance of our capital
lease assets was $5.2 million and $2.1 million, respectively, resulting in a net capitalized value of $3.1 million. At
January 28, 2006, the gross capitalized balance and the accumulated depreciation balance of our capital lease assets
was $4.2 million and $2.0 million, respectively, resulting in a net capitalized value of $2.2 million. These assets are
included in furniture, fixwres and equipment on the balance sheet. The deferred liability balance of these capital
lease assets is included in deferred taxes and other liabilities on the balance sheet.

In March 2007, we entered into a three year transportation agreement, commencing April 2, 2007, with Ryder
Integrated Logistics, Inc., to execute shipmenis from vendors to our distribution facilities in Houston, Texas, and
from the distribution facilities to regional transportation hubs or stores within a regional service area. The
transportation agreement terminated Jeasing agreements we had in place as of the end of fiscal 2006 for our long-
haul tractors and trailers. As a result, our total future lease commitments will be reduced by approximately
$0.3 million for operating leases and approximately $3.1 million for capital lease obligations.

Legal matters
We are involved in various routine legal proceedings, including ongoing litigation, incidental to the conduct of
our business. Management believes that none of these matters will have a material adverse effect on our financial

position, results of operations or cash flows.
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THE MEN’S WEARHOUSE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

11, Supplemental Sales Information (in thousands)

Nei sales:
Men's 1ailored clothing product. . .................
Men’s non-tailored clothing product . ..............
Otherclothing product .. ............... ... .00t

Total clothing product. . . ... ... ... . ... ...,

Tuxedorental. ... iir it i e e
ANeration SEIVICES .. v vt v i et e e
Retail dry cleaning services .....................

Total tuxedo rental, alteration and other services . .. .

Totalnetsales. . . ... .. innennnn

Net sales by brand:

Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006
$ 746,812 $ 809601 $ 859,777
580,621 644,836 705,734
53,808 73.089 75,789
1,381,241 1,527,526 1,641,300
77,488 96,196 119,487
71,716 84.824 102,277
10,174 16.352 19,000
165,438 197,372 240,764
$1.546,679 $1,724.898 31,882,064
$1,043473  $1,129,043 31,216,226
314,948 384,216 418,291
174,906 193,496 228,547
13,352 18,143 19,000
$1,546,679 $1,724,898  $1,882,064

Other clothing product net sules consist primarily of Jadies’ clothing and corporate uniform sales.

12. Pending Acquisitions

On November 16, 2006, we entered into a definitive stock purchase agreement with Federated Department
Stores, Inc. and David’s Bridal, Inc. to acquire Afier Hours Formalwear, Inc. (“ARier Hours™) for a cash
consideration of $100.0 million, subject to cenain adjustments. After Hours is the largest men's formalwear
chain in the United States and operates 507 stores in 35 states under After Hours Formalwear and Mr. Tux store
fronts. After Hours has an exclusive relationship with David's Bridal, Inc.. the nation’s largest bridal retailer with
269 stores and an online offering, That exclusivity will remain effective afier the ucquisition uand will be extended to
Men's Wearhouse and Moores store brands. The acquisition is conditioned upon, among other things, the
lermination or expiration of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of
1976 and other customary closing conditions. On March 23, 2007, we announced that the Federal Trade Commision

had terminated its review and (hat we expect to close the acquisition on or before April 9, 2007.
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THE MEN'S WEARHOUSE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

13. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

Qur quarierly results of operations reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal, recurring adjustments,
| which are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair statement of the resulis for the interim periods

| presented. The consolidated results of operations by quarter for the 2005 and 2006 fiscal years are presented below
‘ (in thousands, except per share amounts):

' Fiscal 2005 Quarters Ended
! April 30, July 30,  October 29,  January 28,
| 2005 2005 2005 2006
| Netsales ......... ...t iiniirenannnnnn $411,649 $423,576  $392,695 $496,978
| Gross margin . .. ...... .o 165,783 168,296 157,829 205,227
Neteamings. .. ...ovvinee e ivnnensnns $ 22704 $24386 $ 24079 § 32,734
l Net eamings per share:
Basic .. ..ot i e s $ 042 $ 045 S 045 $ 062
Diluted. ........ ... .. i, $ 041 $ 043 5 044 $ 060
Fiscal 2006 Quarters Ended
April 29, July 29,  October 23,  February 3,
2006 2006 2006 2007
| N U $434,564 $460,587  $430,068  $556,845
Gross margin . .......couiiiriiranaaa, 182,829 199,123 185,378 248,375
Net earnings............. e $ 28,856 § 35621 § 31,774 § 52,34
Net eamings per share:
BasiC ... i e $ 054 $ 067 $ 060 3 099
Diluted. . ........ociiiiiiiiii i $ 053 $ 065 3% 058 $ 095

Due to the method of calculating weighted average common shares outstanding, the sum of the quarterly per
share amounts may not equal earnings per share for the respective years.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer {*CEQ") and Chief Financial Officer
(“CFQO"), evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(¢) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended {the “Exchange Act1™)) as of the end
of the period covered by this report. Based on this evatuation, the CEQ and CFO have concluded that, a5 of the end
of such period, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective in recording, processing, summarnizing and
reporting, on a timely basis, information required to be disclosed by us in the reports filed or submitted under the
Exchange Act, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and the Attesiation Report of the
Regisicred Public Accounting Firm thereon appear on pages 30 and 31, respectively. of this Annual Repont on
Form 10-K. There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006 that materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matenially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None

PART I

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company

Except as set forth below, the information required by this liem is incorporated herein by reference from our
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held June 13, 2007.

The Company has adopied 2 Code of Ethics for Senior Management which applies to the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and all Presidents, Chief Financial Officers, Principal Accounting Officers, Executive Vice
Presidents and other designated financial and operations officers. A copy of such policy is posted on the Company s
websile, www.tmw.com, under the heading “Corporate Governance”.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held June 13, 2007.

58




ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The following 1able sets forth certain equity compensation plan information for the Company as of February 3,
2007.

Number of Welshied- Number of Securities
Securities to be Avernge Remaining Available for
1ssued Upon Exercise Future Issuance Under
Exercise of Price of Equity Compensation
QOutstanding Qutstanding Ptans (Excluding
Options Options Securities in Column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (€
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security
Holders, ... ... ... o i i 1,190,208 9.40 1,413.696
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Security
Holders{l). ...... ... ittt inneann 757,510 15.16 238,338
Total. ... e e, 1,947,343 11.65 1,652,034

(1) The Company has adopted the 1998 Key Employee Stock Option Plan (the “1998 Plan™) which, as amended,
provides for the grant of options to purchase up to 3,150,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to full-
time key employees (excluding executive officers), of which 694,053 shares are 10 be issued upon the exercise
of outstanding options and 238,338 shares remain available for future issuance under the 1998 Plan. Options
granted under the 1998 Plan must be exercised within ten years from the date of grant. Unless otherwise
provided by the Stock Option Commiltee, options granted under the 1998 Plan vest at the rate of 1/3 of the
shares covered by the grant on each of the first three anniversaries of the date of grant and may not be issued at a
price less than 30% of the fair market value of our stock on the date of grant. However, a significant portion of
options granted under these Plans vest annually in varying increments over a period from one to len years.

In connection with the merger with K&G Men’s Center, Inc. in June 1999, the Company granted substitute
options to certain holders of options to purchase shares of common stock of K&G Men's Center, Inc. who were
not eligible to participate in the Company’s stock option plans at a weighted-average exercise price of $32.26.
Of the 93,201 shares initially reserved for issuance pursuant to such options, options covering 8,707 shares
remain unexercised al this time.

In connection with other acquisitions, the Company entered into employment or consulting arrangements with
certain key individuals at the acquired companies and issued to them options to purchase 33,750 shares at an
exercise price of $16.17 und 48,000 shares at an exercise price of $10.65, of which 21,000 shares remain
unexercised.

The additional information required by ltem 12 is incorporated herein by reference from the Company's Proxy
Statement for its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held June 13, 2007.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this [tem is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held June 13, 2007.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this ltem is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders 1o be held June 13, 2007.

59




PART LV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
{a) 1. Financial Statements
The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included in Pan 1I, Item 8:
Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Junuary 28, 2006 and February 3, 2007

Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended January 29, 2005, January 28, 2006 and
February 3, 2007

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for the years ended
January 29, 2005, January 28, 2006 and February 3, 2007

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended January 29, 2005, January 28, 2006 and
February 3, 2007

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc,
{In thousands)

Balonce ot Charged to  Charged to  Deductions Balzance ut
Beginning  Costs and Other from Translation End of
of Period  Expenses  Accounts'™ Reserve’  Adjustment  Period

Allowance for uncollectible accounts'"@:

Year ended January 29,2005.......... $ 333 $ 323 | $(289) $ 1 $ 368

Year ended January 28, 2006.......... 368 162 —_ (276) 2 256

Year ended February 3,2007.......... 256 153 - (173) ) 235
Allowance for sales returns!! %

Year ended Janvary 29,2005, ......... 5 364 $ (96) 5158 $ — $ — $ 426

Year ended January 28, 2006. . ........ 426 (67 39 — —_ 398

Year ended February 3,2007.......... 398 23 100 —_— —_ 521
Inventory reserves'':

Year ended Janvary 29, 2005. ......... $6,857 $ 48 $ — 5§ — $ 192 $7,097

Year ended January 28, 2006, . ........ 7.097 449 - — 298 7,844

Year ended February 3,2007.......... 7,844 (153) —_ —_ (120) 7.571

() The allowance for uncollectible accoums. the allowance for sales rewmns and the inventory reserves are evaluated at the end of cach fiscal
quarter and adjusied based on the evaluation.

(2} The allowance for uncollectible accounts relates 1o third-party credit curd providers and other trade receivables, As referred to in Note | of
the Notes to Consolidated Financiat Statements, cenain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period
presentation. {Sce Note | of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information).

(3) Consists primarily of write-offy of bad debt.
{4) Allowance for sales retums is included in accrued cxpenses.
{5) Deducted from net sales.

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or because the required information is includexd
in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.
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3. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Exhibit
2.1 — Stock Purchase Agreement dated November 16, 2006, by and among Federated Department Stores, Inc.,

David's Bridal, Inc. and The Men's Wearhouse, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on November 17, 2006).

3.1 — Restated Anticles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 30, 1994),

3.2 — By-laws, as amended (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 10 the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 1, 1997).

3.3 — Articles of Amendment to the Restated Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 1999).

4,1 — Restated Articles of Incorporation (included as Exhibit 3.1).
4.2 — By-laws (included as Exhibit 3.2).

4.3 — Form of Common Stock certificate (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3 10 the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-45949)).

4.4 — Articles of Amendment to the Restated Articles of Incorporation (included as Exhibit 3.3).

45 — Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2005, by and among The Men's
Wearhouse, Inc., Moores The Suit People Inc., Golden Brand Clothing (Canada) Ltd., the financial
institutions from time 10 time parties thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Canadian Agent. {(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 27, 2005).

4.6 — Term Sheet Agreement dated as of January 29, 2003 evidencing the uncommitied CANS 10 million
facility of National City Bank, Canada Branch to Golden Brand Clothing (Canada) Ltd. (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 4.7 to the Company's Annual Repont on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 1, 2003).

4.7 — Agrcement and Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement effective as of January 31,
2007, by and among the Company, Moores The Suit People Inc., Golden Brand Clothing (Canada) Ltd..
the financial institutions from time to time party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Repon
on Form B-K filed with the Commission on February 7, 2007)

*10.1 — 1992 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan {As Amended and Restated Effective January 1, 2004),
including forms of stock option agreement and restricted stock award agreement (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
March 18, 2005).

*10.2 — Stock Agreement dated as of March 23, 1992, between the Company and George Zimmer (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.13 to the Company's Registration Stalement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 33-45949)).

*10.3 — Split-Dollar Agreement and related Split-Dollar Collateral Assignment dated November 25, 1994
between the Company, George Zimmer and David Edwab, Co-Trustee of the Zimmer 1994 [rrevocable
Trust {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended January 28, 1995).

*10.4 — 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan (As Amended and Restated Effective March 29, 2004), including the
forms of stock option agreement, restricted stock award agreement and deferred stock unit award
agreement (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Cutrent Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on March 18, 2005).

*10.5 — 1998 Key Employee Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1998).

*10.6 — First Amendment to 1998 Key Employee Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1
1o the Company’s Registration Statement on Form §-8 (registration No. 333-80033)).

*10.7 — Second Amendment to 1998 Key Employee Stock Optien Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 29,
2000).
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit

*10.8 — Split-Dollar Agreement and related Split-Dollar Collateral Assignment dated May 25, 1995, by and
between the Company and David H. Edwab (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.26 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2002).

*10.9 — Split-Dotlar Agreement and related Split-Dollar Collateral Assignment dated May 25, 1995, between the
Company, David H, Edwab and George Zimmer, Co-Trustee of the David H. Edwab 1995 lrrevocable
Trust (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.27 10 the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended February 2. 2002).

*)0.10 — First Amendment to Split-Dollar Agreement dated January 17, 2002, between the Company, David H.
Edwab and George Zimmer, Trustee of (he David H. Edwab 1995 Irrevocable Trust (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.28 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 2, 2002).

*j0.11 — Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effective as of October 1, 2005, by and between
the Company and David H. Edwab (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on November 14, 2005).

*10.12 — 2004 Long-Term ncentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 29, 2003).

*10.13 — Split-Dollar Agreement dated as of June 21, 2006, by and between The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. and
George Zimmer (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 29, 2006).

10.14 — Employee Stock Ownership Plan, Amendment and Restatement Effective December 31, 2006 (filed
herewith).

21.1 — Subsidiaries of the Company (filed herewith).

23.1  — Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors (filed herewith),

31.1  — Certification of Annual Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief
Executive Officer (filed herewith).

31.2 — Certification of Annual Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief
Financial Officer (filed herewith).

32.1 — Certification of Annual Report Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief
Executive Officer (filed herewith).

322 — Certification of Annual Report Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief
Financial Officer (filed herewith).

*  Management Compensation or Incentive Plan

The Company will fumnish a copy of any exhibit described above to any beneficial holder of its securities upon
receipt of a written request therefore, provided that such request sets forth a good faith representation that, as of the
record date for the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, such beneficial holder is entitled to vote al
such meeting, and provided further that such holder pays to the Company a fee compensating the Company for its
reasonable expenses in furnishing such exhibits.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant 1o the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has

duly caused this repont to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Txe MER's WEARHOUSE, InC.

By /s/ GEORGE ZIMMER

George Zimmer
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: April 4, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacity and on the dates indicated.

Signafure Tille Date

Is! GEORGE ZIMMER Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive April 4, 2007

George Zimmer Officer and Director

fs/  NewL P, Davis Executive Vice President, Chief Financial April 4, 2007

Neill P. Davis Officer, Treasurer and Principal Financial
Officer

fs/ Diana M. WiLson Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting April 4, 2007
Diana M. Wilson Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

/s/  Davip H. Epwag Yice Chairman of the Board and Director April 4, 2007
David H. Edwab

fs/  RinaLDO S. BruToco Director April 4, 2007

Rinalde S. Brutoco

fs/  MicHaEL L. Ray Direcior April 4, 2007
Michael L. Ray

s/ SHELDON 1. STEIN Director April 4, 2007
Sheldon [, Stein

s/ KatHLEEN MasoN Director Apnl 4, 2007
Kathteen Mason

fs/ DEerak CHoPRA Director April 4, 2007
Deepak Chopra

fs/  WiLLiam B. SECHREST Director April 4, 2007

William B. Sechrest
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Exhibit 31.1

Certifications
1, George Zimmer, cenify that:
I.  thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Men's Wearhouse, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state & material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information inctuded in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other centifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 {e) and 15d-15 (e)) and internal control over financial reponing (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(D) for the registrant and have:

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, 1o ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance wilh generally accepted accounting principles;

¢)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual repon) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intenal control over financial reporting, and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 have disclosed. based on our most recent evaluation of internal contre! over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
cquivalen! functions):

a)  All significam deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;

| and

b)  Any fraud, whether or not materia), that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s

| internal control over financial reporting,

Dated: April 4, 2007
By i/ GEORGE ZIMMER
George Zimmer
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certifications
I, Neill P. Davis, cenify that:
1.  1have reviewed this annua) report on Form 10-K of The Men's Wearhouse, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any unirue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misteading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Bascd on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presenied in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 (¢) and 15d-15 (¢)) and imernal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(F) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, 1o ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal conltrol over financial reporiing to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accouating principles;

¢)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s intemai control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely 10 materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recenl evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, 10 the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information,
and

b)  Any fraud, whether or not maierial, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: April 4, 2007
By /si NEILL P. DAVIS

Neill P. Davis
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
BEST AVAILABLE COPY

Certification Pursuant to
18 US.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Not Filed Pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

In connection with the Annual Report of The Men's Wearhouse, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended February 3, 2007,
s filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Repont™), I, George Zimmer, Chief Executive Officer of the
'F.‘ompany. certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

{1) The Report fully complies with the requirement of Section 13{a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: April 4, 2007 By s! GEORGE ZIMMER

George Zimmer
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

%sr 4y,
Certification Pursuant to AILA 5
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, £ o

as Adopted Pursuant to | 4
Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Not Filed Pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

In connection with the Annual Report of The Men’s Wearhouse, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended February 3, 2007,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof {the “Report”™), ], Neill P. Davis, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U. 5. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirement of Section 13(a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: April 4, 2007
By s/ NEILL P. DAVIS
Neill P. Davis
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Principal Financial Cfficer
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